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Financfal Highlights
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for the year ended 31 December

B A=+RLFER

2005 2004
~RBEBLE —ETNEFE
Audited Audited Change
BEH R =)
HK$'000 HK$’000 %
FERT FET
Turnover EER 4,574,079 3,406,992 +34
Gross profit E£F 1,086,360 791,023 +37
Net profit for the year REFLF 702,048 526,501 +33
EPS FRAEF
- Basic —HEAR HK$1.5458 T HK$1.18% T +31
- Diluted —88 KK$1.508 T HK$1.13%57T +33
DPS gRERE
— Interim — &5 23 HX centsiE{l 17 HK centsi&l +35
— Final — R Hj 25 HiX centsiE{l 23 HK cents&{l +9
Total: BEt 48 HK centsiE 1l 40 HK centsiEfll +20

ANALYSIS OF GROSS, OPERATING AND
NET PROFIT MARGINS (%)
EX SYRFBANERS (%)
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TURNOVER BY GEQOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
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The Chairman’s Statement

EEHRES

Dear shareholders,

| am very pleased to announce that 2005 was another record
breaking year for TRULY in both turnover and net profit. Audited
consolidated turnover for the year ended 31 December 2005
was about HK$4.6 billion which was 34% more than the last
corresponding year (HK$3.4 billion). Audited net profit for the
year was approximately HK$702 million representing an
increase of 33% over the year ended 31 December 2004
(approximately HK$527 million). Both gross (23.8%) and net
profit margins (15.3%) for the year were satisfactory and
comparable with 2004 (23.2% and 15.5% respectively).

The Group’s CSTN LCD (“Colour Super-twisted Nematic Liquid
Crystal Display”) products had during the year maintained its
dominance in the China handset market and recorded a big
jump to HK$2.5 billion in turnover (2004: HK$2.0 billion)
representing a significant growth of more than 25%. Thanks
to the new CSTN production line installed and commenced
mass production in around mid-2005, the enhanced
productivity and yield wherefrom helped keep or even increase
the overall gross margin of this segment of operations. Of
course, in satisfying the customers’ needs in all different
display solutions and to boost business in the long run, we
had inevitably accepted orders of less profitability such as
the assembly of TFT (“Thin Film Transistor”) display products.
We believe the situation will persist before the Group has its
own TFT panel production facilities.

Like | said in my last year chairman’s statement, people and
know how have long been my greatest emphases since the
Group was successfully transformed into a technology driven
enterprise some years ago. Although more stringent measures
will be applied to contain cost in the course of continuous
business growth, more resources are to be allocated in
recruiting people of high and appropriate calibres to meet the
challenge from the ever-changing business community. This
is especially important for R&D people who are vital elements
for the healthy growth of the Group's businesses in different
directions.

Barring unforeseen market conditions, | still feel comfortable
with the Group’s medium term business growth momentum.
The unaudited turnover for the first two months of 2006 had
recorded a better than expected double digit growth. We are
confident of maintaining this expansion trend and hope to
achieve another excellent result for 2006.

Last but not least, | would like to thank our shareholders,

business partners, staff and workers for their continuous
support to the growth of the Group.

Lam Wai Wah, Steven
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2006

AR

AARARLH ERE_SERFZEEB RO
B S -BE_TFAF T A=+—B1EE
IREVGASEEBNBICEET BEEREB
(341887T) L#34% - AEEFZEBBZLFNN B
7.028 T BEHRE_TTOE+_A=+—8
WFE (495.278ET) LFA33% - ZEFZ2EF|
% (23.8%) RAFIE (15.3% /\7%“ B-RF
M (D R1523.2%%15.5%) HBE

E AEBEZCSTN LCD ([ e BH s Ry ERE
aaﬁé%%%J YEREDE ﬂ%ﬁﬁ BEMRSTE
i SEEEAZSEET (CEEME 208E
75) NIEER25% - GRNR-ETRAFHEEYN
csmi&%&iﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ&i% EE& ENRER
RERSENRBEZRAUERS B BEE
MEBENEFHMBETRABTSARIBRR
¥R REER RNESERZRTEE ETE
(MEZETFT(CEEE &8 ) BTEER) BN
ME UWEBREAEESRTFTEREEREHNT
THE-

A AREFZ TEREEFHAML g AKER
BERI A AR EEUARIMR RAA—E
TOEEATHREN - BELCEELEERERER
BREZEE BHREEBIBRER ZEFZHN
A EFRENESEEZER BEESEHER
ZEBAT UNENREESEBE Y EHRIERR I
BB AT HAEBEBETET AREERL

EEAREZTHERT RAANHARETE
ERZERDBRBEL-ZETFEMREAZ
RIBEREE AR RER B SER-R
PEELIRERSERRES BER_FTTN
EEABERE-

K& RARBLEHHMNEER EBBH- R

IRHEEEERR 2 THI 5
E
M
EE —TRRNFZA-T=A

Annual Report 2005 £

05




06

Vianagement Discussion and Analysis

ERE TR

BUSINESS REVIEW

LCD sales for the year were about HK$4.4 billion (2004:
HK$3.1 billion), and comprised 96% of the Group's turnover.
In 2005, 76% and 13% of the LCD outputs in dollar term were
shipped to China and South Korea respectively. Our
performance in these two markets were still outperforming
over those elsewhere as consistent with the first half year.
With GDP heavily relying on exports, these two world-class
manufacturing bases are regarded as TRULY's stepping stone
for our products to be recognised in the international market.

Despite a negative sentiment being widely spread in the mobile
handset market in which the Group’s LCD products have a

leverage, we have during the year achieved an overall

encouraging gross and net profit margins of 23.8% and 15.3%
respectively. In addition to a traditionally tight overheads
budget and the effective cost control, the better than expected
profit margins were in fact a result of the real return from our
investment in automated production plants and the continuous
improvement in productivity such as outputs and yields.

Vertical integration in production of our LCD modules has been
one of our business successes for some time. During the
year, the mass productions of flexible and conventional printed
circuit boards and camera modules in our own factories had
significantly reduced the purchase cost of making the final
LCD products. Together with the increased production
capability of the second CSTN line, we are ready to meet new
business opportunity.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
By geographical segments:

%400

FRLCD HERHNA4EBET(ZETNE 318
B ONEBLEEY c RCTTEREUE
BHE BEPNERERZICDELSRET6%R
13% ° 8 FEFERE HMEEMENSE I ZREBR
HibipBRY - ARNEELRBEREHOZH B
R AREEMIRE A ERES TS
FHNEEZBRG-

BERED LD ERBEIBETHTSLEER
SRS EAEERFERZEFERAFIESAIE
2|23.8%15.3% F BERMESAEE R —E
FREECFARTAERTZERZRANEEIN 58
(CEERBEREZERERREESE D (WEL
ERRR)BENENERTRETEH BT

LCDIEAEEZSAMELSTRARMESZHP —
B EN ERMAERIBAAEEEERN
RfEgs 2 HBGRRRAE RIESEA A X E L ES
HLCDERZEER A I LE ZHCSTNEZERE
RA BMEEEREOENBERZEE-

7RER
BHESEHD:

Turnover by
geographical segments

REDENG &
2005 2004
—EFHE —E2@NF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
PRC & 3,433,919 2,265,565
South Korea HE 587,569 443,167
Japan SF:N 175,194 241,350
Hong Kong R 147,980 135,207
Europe B 119,132 113,778
Others Efh 110,285 207,925
4,574,079 3,406,992

Truly International Holdings Limited SR EBR AR QT




By business segments: REBSERD:
2005 —BBIE
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products
R BFHII Consolidated
BETRBER Em ®7a
HKX$’000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHExT
REVENUE g
External sales SNEH 4,389,588 184,491 4,574,079
RESULT %iE
Segment result VaE -4 838,578 23,725 862,303
Interest income FlEMA 14,536
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBRZORER (1,092)
impairment loss on AHEHERE ZRE
available-for-sale investment &8 (7,800) - (7,800)
Irmpairment loss on property, ME -BEREEZ
plant and equipment REEE - (6,377) (8,377)
Finance costs SHRA (19,883)
Share of results of an associate BE-REEQEZE - (382) (382)
Profit before taxation MBS 844,505
2004 —TEEE
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products
ey BTHE  Consolidated
BRBESR Em ey
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHET
(Restated)
(EH)
REVENUE W2
External sales A= 3,138,393 268,599 3,406,992
RESULT ¢
Segment result DR 618,989 2,625 621,614
Interest income FIBUYA 1,477
Unallocated corporate expenses e SN A/NCTE - §=: (1,075)
Finance costs B%ER (14,201)
Share of results of an associate EiE—REEARESR - 113 113
Profit before taxation FREZATER 607,928
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Management Discussion and Analysls EERB TR N T 4T

INVESTMENT, ASSETS ARD LIABILITIES

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery
amounting to HK$379 million and properties under
development amounting to HK$34 million for the purpose of
expanding its manufacturing capacity in the China factory
campus.

Total assets were increased by approximately 42% to
HK$3,428 million which comprised HK$2,157 million of
current assets, HK$1,091 million of property, plant and
equipment and HK$180 million of other long-term assets. Total
liabilities were about HK$1,490 miilion, of which HK$1,202
million were current liabilities and HK$288 million were long
term liabilities. The current ratio was maintained at a healthy
level of 1.8.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOCURCES
Turnover and net profit for the year were increased by 34%
and 33% respectively. Earnings per share were accordingly
enhanced by approximately 31%.

As at 31 December 2005, the surplus cash and bank balances,
net of outstanding bank and other borrowings were about
HK$417 million (2004: HK$53 million). These borrowings bear
interest at prevailing market rate and their maturity profiles
are shown in the notes to the financial statements.

The financial position of the Group is even better than last
year and ready for future capital expansion while keeping a
sufficiently high level of cash and bank balances (HK$848
million at 31 December 2005) together with adequate
unutilised hanking facilities. The gearing ratio based on total
liabilities, net of cash and bank balances was approximately
33%.

Capital expenditure of around HK$2 biilion for the next three
years in respect of acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment was authorised but not contracted for. Their
expected sources of funding will be principally from internal
reserves.

Truly International Holdings Limited SR BBER AT

REER SEARTEANEREES Y Bl
FELES. TOEET 2 BEREE URSE
0.34EBTZERTME

BEREFHNA2%E34.28 B EFHE
21.57EBTREEE 10901 BETDE - BER
RERLSOEBETHCRBEE-BBRENA
14.90(BB L EFREL2.02EELRBAER
288 BT RERE-REL BB ELZEE
Ko

RBEESRIRER
FREEBREFMD A EF34%KR33% - Bt®
AREFIBE 2 S HNHI31% -

RIZSRFF__RA=1+—H FRSRRITER
(BEAEELBIRETRHEE) HR4LTEET
(ZZFME:0.63FE ) HEREZFER
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LERERE (BHNRRERBTER) StEOR
33%-
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GENERAL

During the year, the Company issued 6,475,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each under share option scheme at
HK$2.196 per share, for a consideration of HK$14,219,100.
The new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all
respects and the issued share capital of the Company was
accordingly increased to HK$45,816,453 at 31 December
2005.

The state of the Group’s current order books is very good.

Except for investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
neither the Group nor the Company had held any material
investments during the year.

Additions to and disposals of fixed assets mainly in plant and
machinery were approximately HK$435 million and HK$15
million during the year. As at 31 December 2005, the Group
had pledged certain of its machinery with an aggregate carrying
value of approximately HK$47 million to secure banking
facilities granted to the Company’s subsidiaries.

More than 6,800 workers and staff are currently employed in
our Shan Wei factory in China and around 80 personnel in the
Group's Hong Kong office. Total staff costs for the year were
approximately HK$196 million.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the balance
sheet date and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates
was minor and properly hedged, if any.

CUTLOOHK

Our business expansion over the past few years was based
on solid grounds of making the right investments in production
facilities, selecting the right products to develop and sell and
targeting the right market to penetrate. We will continue to
fine-tune the execution of these policies to keep the Group
growing in the right direction. As a matter of self-monitoring,
more and more internal controls will be and are being deployed
to regulate this growing process. After the successful launch
of the MRPII system in material réquisition and production
planning in around May 2004 which resulted in rapid decline
in inventory turnover period from over 100 days to around 50
days, a new ERP system is now being tested which will further
enhance the production efficiency of the Group.

—RE=EE
ER-ARNTEEERESEIIENR2. 1968 TE
776,475,00003 SR EEC.LE T2 TR IR
514,219,100 ZEFR N AR ERNHES
FESZEERSEN ARTR_EERE+ A
=+ — B2 EHTRARIEINZEL5,816,4537F
o

AEBRBZITBHEIFERE.

BRMBAE R RIRAN REERERR]Y
ENEAREEAEARE-

EXN EEEEFERLE URERERAT)
#1R4.35BELROAGEET - R _TEAF+
—AZtT—B AEEEBEFEEZENC.ATE
BT ZETHRIBER HERTRRMBELRIRT
fEEBERmR-

INAFHRIB6,8008 TAREEFERAEEMRN
BALEZ TR LA RAIBS0EE T FERALR
EEERER-FAN BTEREHA1.961EH
ﬁ:o

FEERGEEINEATEANRAE AR
BEEZEXRIBR LCRILZRIEREP (0
B

S

BT LR EBERETERR NEERELE
ST EETEERE HEAEESARER
WENURREINETRE 2 BIEME-RMHE
BERAERITHERE EXEENFEEEERR
BR-FNEREEFE ALEERTERIY
NEEE BB RSB N EENER S
BRI R R A E 8 B 2 MRPIE
o (B rrE EH AR AR B100 X EEEH50
RNEHEHESE FETEENSEE AT
LEEFREES TE—SRARER Y £EN
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and Analysis BEB R RO

Manag ¢ Di

QUTLOOIK (Continued)

As an industrialist with more emphasis on production and
R&D, we have also put much efforts in our marketing force. In
order to strengthen our direct business relationships with
multinational customers, we had during the year re-organised
our various overseas marketing offices including the Europe,
USA and Japan subsidiaries. The successful implementation
of the said re-structuring will no doubt be advantageous to
our healthy growth in geographical segments and diversify
the associated credit risk.

2006 and the following couple of years will witness the Group’s
another dramatic change in technological breakthrough.
Through years of product development and feasibility study,
we are now in the process of finalising the investments of a
mass production plant in TFT panel or OLED (“Organic Light
Emitting Diode") displays. The plan established so far is based
on a principally self-financed model. We are fully confident of
achieving the goal in the near future and thereafter our
customers can enjoy the benefit of an even more cost effective
total colour display solution under TRULY’s brand name.

DIVIDENDS

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2005 of 25 HK cents per share
(2004: 23 HK cents) which, together with the interim dividend
of 23 HK cents per share (2004: 17 HK cents) paid in October,
2005, makes a total dividend for the year of 48 HK cents per
share (2004: 40 HK cents).

The total dividend payout ratio for the year was about 31%
and it is the Board's long-term target to keep this ratio in
between 30% and 35%.

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the five largest customers
and purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for
less than 30% of the total sales and purchases of the Group
respectively.

As at 31 December 2005, none of the directors, their
associates, or any shareholders which to the knowledge of
the directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five
largest customers and/or five largest suppliers mentioned in
the preceding paragraph.

Truly International Holdings Limited ER BB ER LT
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out as follows:—

Mr. Lam Wai Wah, Steven, aged 53, is the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company. He is the founder of the
Group and has over 29 years of experience in the electronics
industry. He is primarily responsible for the formulation of the
Group’s overall strategic planning and business development.

Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, aged 47, is an Executive Director
of the Company. He is responsible for the Group's operations
and external affairs. He joined the Group in 1987.

Mr. Cheung Tat Sang, James, aged 50, is an Executive Director
of the Company. He is responsible for the sales of the Group’s
LCD products and other semiconductor components. Prior to
joining the Group in 1989, he was sales manager for a number
of electronics companies for over 10 years.

Mr. Li Jian Hua, aged 42, is the Head of the Group’s LCD
Production Division and an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Li graduated from the lJilin University of Technology and
Engineering Management in 1987 and joined the group in
1989. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in a multinational
motor car manufacturer in Guangzhou City, the PRC for almost
two years.

Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, aged 48, is an independent Non-
executive Director of the Company and the Chairman of the
Group’s Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees.
He is a practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong
and is members of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants and a council member of the Macau Society of
Certified Practising Accountants. Mr. Chung has extensive
experience in accounting and financial management and has
been the independent Non-executive Director, management
consultant and Company Secretary of a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. ip Cho Ting, Spencer, aged 47, is an independent Non-
executive Director and members of the Group’s Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. He is the holder
of a Bachelor of Science degree from the University of
Wisconsin, Green Bay, U.S.A. Mr. Ip operates his own business
in the commercial sector.

EEREREEAR
ATHBASATNESRAEEEHEEARY
BE:

MEELAE BFRAT=R TR ZEIREES
BIEE-FRAKEZARA REETEERA-
THhE FTEREMFAEEZBBRERERR
o

ERREE BENTER AR ZHITES W
BEASEYEBEEEMINER BN AN
FMAREE-

REALSE REA+TE AOBZATES KA
EHEAEEAARERRERR AT ER
THEER—NAANENATEBZ AT BESR
EFLRZEREERTF-

FREELE RENT R FREZREEET
BEENEERTATZATES-TALER—N
NEFRERERTERBERER ER—-AN
AEMATRE-BRMAREERZ 51 B
BN —EEE AR ERTROME-

EHRATE REE TN\ ARE 2B FIT
B WATKEERES S FHEEERER
ZEENIR-EATERREIN XAHEES
SRS ERE S NS FARMM
EEHASNEE SRR - EREREHRAUE
Z18 HEEARER YREEEE LT ATNE
UEMITER ERBERRARAMNE.
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Management Discussion and Analysis EEBHRE D

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Mr. Heung Kai Sing, aged 57, is an independent Non-executive
Director and members of the Group’s Audit, Remuneration
and Nomination Committees. He has experience in textile
industry.

Mr. Cheung Chong Hai, aged 54. Mr. Cheung joined the Group
in 1987 and is the General Manager of Truly Semiconductors
(Europe) GmbH with main responsibility in the marketing of
the Group’s LCD products to customers in Europe.

Mr. Ng Sui Wa, Thomas, aged 43, is the Group's Chief Financial
Officer and the Finance Director of Truly Semiconductors
Limited. He graduated from the University of Hong Kong and
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Ng joined the Group in 1996 and has more
than 18 years of experiences for working in an international
accounting firm and in the commercial and industrial sectors.

Lam Wai Wah, Steven
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2006

Truly International Holdings Limited EF/BPEEFR A T
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Directors’ Report
EEENES

The directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of liquid crystal display products and electronic consumer
products including MP3 players, calculators and electronic
components.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2005 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 24.

An interim dividend of 23 HK cents per share, amounting to
HK$105,378,000, was paid to the shareholders during the
year.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of 25 HK cents per share to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members on 28 April
2006, amounting to HK$114,614,000, and the retention of
the remaining profit of HK$482,056,000 for the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery
amounting to HK$379,142,000 for the purpose of expanding
its manufacturing capacity in Shan Wei City, Guangdong
Province in the People’s Republic of China.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the issued share
capital of the Company are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

EReENREEE _TERAE+_A=+—8
WHEEZFRREEZTERR-

EBEEE

ERBTHREER LR EWB LR 2 EEERR
HEREERARERREQRETHEER &
B MP3 B HERRET R

XERBNDE
BEEERFE+-A=1—-BLEENEER
BERTINFE24BNGESWEER.

ALRERFARBRI R HREFR23E
W& 105,378,000 T °

EEREO_SERENA -+ NABRIALT
BR 3 2 MR AR R 3 R HRRY S B AL 25 48 5B
#9114,614,000% 0 T ARBEREEH T EF
482,056,000/ 7T

FR AEERBERTFEARESNBEREWET
CHEENMABREST9,142,0008 L2 BE R

TEBERAZYE BERSE #EREMEY
BERER T ERRMAEELSE-

IR s
RRAFZEBITRARERZZSFHEEARTE
HRHEE2078-
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Directors’ Report EE & RES

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY ZAABZADIKREE
The Company's reserves available for distribution to RZFEZERF+ZAZ+—8 RQRESIETR

shareholders as at 31 December 2005 were as follows: RGBT
2005 2004
—EBBRF —EFEWMF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Share premium R RE 279,431 265,860
Special reserve et 17,409 17,409
Retained earnings RE B 18,254 3,271
315,094 286,540

Under the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, the share  BERSESZERES S0 8 2 ROEE K
premium of the Company is available for distributions or paying ~ BEEZERXERMAR 2 KX RREFE DK
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its =~ HXTERE -MREBELDIRAZIRRESE &
Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided that R FIAAR B REEHBIZP TEIMER-
immediate following the distribution or paying dividend the

Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference AR BZFHIREEDERA DR ERBEMB L
between the net book values of the underlying assets of the ~ RIZBRE RRFHRB R A2 BHEERTF
Company's subsidiaries acquired at the date on which the HEEALRREBEMBFTZBMHAERERE
shares of these companies were acquired by the Company, B

and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for

the acquisitions.

DIRECTORS i

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the FRARBEABSEZRAHL ARRAZEERE
date of this report were: mr:
Executive directors: BITHES:

Lam Wai Wah, Steven EEE

Wong Pong Chun, James BHE

Cheung Tat Sang, James REE

Li Jian Hua TR
Independent non-executive directors: BYUFHITHSE:
Chung Kam Kwong IR

Heung Kai Sing ERLH

Ip Cho Ting, Spencer Z8=

1 4 Truly International Holdings Limited EX/EEER AT




DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Articles 100 and 120 of the Company's
Articles of Association, Wong Pong Chun, James and Cheung
Tat Sang, James retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the above articles.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

BE= ()

HERD AR ERMIE100EREL1200EZ
BE EHEREEAITEEE HAERTER
BEEEET.

BUIBTESEE FHARNRESE.

BREVBEGZBRRBEAEERET ESH
FEALRRENB AR LEAAERTER
—ERENIEE CEERERM MPURLEZR
BeH-

ESzE0ER
ALEREAANBAR ERTEAAARE
FEEFMERAEANS L ARFFRAFA
EEEBIRERL BAE K-
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2005, the interests of the directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

Long positions
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

ESvRORBBROER

RERRRERES R ERTIE3526FRT
ZELMAR IBECETRATNEBETESR
SEREFAN AN EEIRBRERYMEZHM
BERAR R-_ZERAF+R=+—8 EFR
HMRABER RTINS REEROERNT:

¥2
(a) ZFRFAEREECIETZ EBR

Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
shares held of the Company
Name of director Capacity 2o BT YN A=)
EEsE 55 ZERER RTREF O
%
Lam Wai Wah, Steven Beneficial owner 199,548,000 43.55
WEE EREEA
Held by spouse (note 1) 12,100,000 2.64
HEGEE (i)
211,648,000 46.19
Wong Pong Chun, James Beneficial owner 404,000 0.09
B E BEREFA
Held by spouse (note 2) 100,000 0.02
BREEFH (i)
504,000 0.11
Cheung Tat Sang, James Beneficial owner 910,000 0.20
RESE EmBEAA
Li Jian Hua Beneficial owner 1,173,000 0.26
TRE BEXEEAA

Truly International Holdings Limited ERBEMER AT
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

BEEZROREBEROER @®

Long positions (Continued) BE (&)
(b) Share options (b) FBARHE
: Number of Number of
Name of director Capacity options held underlying shares
EEuE 52 [DESA: L ] HERGEEE
Lam Waj Wah, Steven Beneficial owner 6,900,000 6,900,000
WEZE EREEA
Wong Pong Chun, James Beneficial owner 5,190,000 5,190,000
BHHE BHBEEA
Cheung Tat Sang, James Beneficial owner 8,100,000 8,100,000
RiEE EREFA _
Li Jian Hua Beneficial owner 4,400,000 4,400,000
T E#EA
Held by spouse {note 3) 4,400,000 4,400,000
BEBIHFE (FFiE3)
28,990,000 28,990,000
Notes: H3E:

1. Lam Wai Wah, Steven is deemed to be interested in 12,100,000
ordinary shares of the Company, being the interests held
beneficially by his spouse, Chung King Yee, Cecilia.

2. Wong Pong Chun, James is deemed to be interested in 100,000
ordinary shares of the Company, being the interests held
beneficially by his spouse, Lai Ching Mui, Stella.

3. Li Jian Hua is deemed to be interested in 4,400,000 share
options of the Company, being the interests held beneficially

by his spouse, Guo Yu Yan.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2005.

1. HMEERBBHEE12,100,000BAERBERS
BHRBEEZAQRITBRE R

2. EHERARSEEL00,000HAREREERE
HEEZF LR EREES

3. ZFRERRAEE4400,0000HEEBF LR
EXEE AN AEREER-

BEXFEREN T

BAE+T-A=+—

B SEEREAMRAMEEE L OFISEEAEE
BEE ARG REERHERIRE -
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set
out in note 34 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company's
share options during the year:

AR
BREADEREARE B BB R Y SRR
34718

TREBARR ZERERFANZER):

Number of Number of
options options
outstanding at outstanding at
beginning of year Exercised end of year
Option type RENDEKRITHE during year RERYKRITE
BREER HBEREHA ERTE BRERE
Category 1: Directors
E-HEE
Lam Wai Wah, Steven 2001 6,900,000 - 6,900,000
R
Wong Pong Chun, James 2001 1,270,000 (480,000) 790,000
Bk 2003 4,400,000 - 4,400,000
Cheung Tat Sang, James 2001 6,200,000 (2,500,000) 3,700,000
RiEE 2003 4,400,000 - 4,400,000
Li Jian Hua (Note) 2003 8,800,000 - 8,800,000
FEE (K
31,970,000 (2,980,000) 28,990,000

Note: Li Jian Hua is deemed to be interested in 4,400,000 2003
share options, being the interests held beneficially by his
spouse, Guo Yu Yan.

MisE: TEREWIRAHERL,400,000/ A EE BRI
BXRBEZ _ER=FRRIEER-

i

Category 2: Substantial shareholder %:ﬁi FERR
Other than the share options held by Lam Wai Wah, Steven B EXAEBHMEEST ZBREN RAFH
as disclosed above, no share option has been granted to other  BRRMEERRR FERE-
substantial shareholders.
Number of Number of
options options
outstanding at outstanding at
beginning of year Exercised end of year
Option type REDERTE during year RELMKRTRE
BRESS BREYE FERITE BRERE
Category 3: Employees 2001 6,200,000 (3,495,000) 2,705,000
E-HER 2003 26,400,000 - 26,400,000
32,600,000 (3,495,000) 29,105,000

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised was HK$10.38.

Truly International Holdings Limited SR EMRER LR

AR TR R RREEREITE B a2 e
HUTTER10.38%8 T




ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes disclosed above, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2005, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that other
than the interests disclosed above in respect of Lam Wai Wah,
Steven, the following shareholders had notified the Company
of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the
Company.

BEROREFZRH

B DR BT BN ARTREATANE
REPERNLEZ2TFENTHE BRARAZES
R BEETRENEMEMEARRZBN%
EHmEEFE-

FERR

% EXAEBARE RS s READ
FIERES N (EP FI36IRFTIRF 2 ERE
BEEMARE BE-SERFT A=+
A THRREAEAATNRRAR L ERITER
Ah a2 B

Long positions B
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the:Company RRRSRAECIETZERBR
Percentage of
Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
shares held of the Company
Name of shareholder Capacity gz B 8T BWEQTZE
BRE#R =55 EEREAE RITREFSH
%
Chan Kin Sun (note) Beneficial owner 28,900,000 6.31
BREs (M) BHERA
Held by spouse 9,856,000 2.15
HEERE
38,756,000 8.46
Chan Lai Lan Beneficial owner 25,896,000 5.65
PR EREEA

Note: Chan Kin Sun and his spouse, Cheng Kwan Ying, Jennifer, are
deemed to be interested in 38,756,000 shares of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2005.

M REFERAREBREABRRAFTALA
38,756,000 i {128

B EXFTEREN BE_TERETA=T—

B AARNEREREFAEMARREEITRAL
BHERRAE
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
schemes are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’'s Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASES, SALES OR REDEMPTICN OF
LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year.

MODEL CODRE

None of the Directors of the Company is aware of information
that would reasonably indicate that the Company was not in
the year under review in compliance with the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Truly International Holdings Limited S RBBER AT

FREABCR
FEBERFHERDAFHERERERY
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
in accordance with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code™) for the purposes of reviewing
and providing supervision over the Group's financial reporting
matters and internal controis. The annual results have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee which comprises all the three
independent non-executive directors namely Mr. Chung Kam
Kwong (being the Chairman), Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and
Mr. Heung Kai Sing, and Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, an
executive director, as members. They meet at least four times
a year.

The Group has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers ali of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEES

The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee and a
Nomination Committee respectively in accordance with the
relevant requirements of the Code. The two Committees are
chaired by Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, an independent non-
executive director and comprise three other members, namely
Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, being
independent non-executive directors and Mr. Wong Pong Chun,
James, an executive director of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have complied with all the applicable code provisions set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules which became effective on 1 January
2005, throughout the year ended 31 December 2005, except
for the following major deviations:

1. Code Provision A.2.1 — The roles of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive are not separated and are performed
by the same individual, Mr. Lam Wai Wah, Steven. The
Board will meet regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company. The Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the
management of Company and believes that this structure
will enable us to make and implement decisions promptly
and efficiently.

ERERE
ARAEERCEERTHR TR ([FA)) 278
XA IERZEE S UEBMRERTERY
BEREE XA -2FRRCERERER
CEMR TERZEE RS E-RBUINITES
BRREE (RREIRE) BEFTLEREFRH
L= (EEEHRE) URBTESEREREL (F
SERE) AR REEFRIBRNREH-

AEEERE EHRAEILMEERERBIIFNR
TEBHIBHERABT L FERRE TR
ARREBULFERTEEERBIAL

HHMEEERREREET

ARAEBBETUZRERENNKIFHZE
ERRELEEE-MEZECHABIIFNIES
ERECHELRE UBE=REMKEREES
EERBRBLE BUERTESR) URERE

ok (ARERTES) -
SRER
BE_TPEE+-AS+—BILER SEE—

EETR-TTRF-A-BERZ ETHEM
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

2.

Code Provision A.4.1 - The independent non-executive
Directors have not been appointed for a specific term,
but are subject to retirement and re-election in
accordance with the Articles.

Code Provision A.4.2 — This Code Provision stipulates
that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first next general meeting after their
appointment, and every director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
According to the Articles, any Director shall hold office
until the next following annual general meeting and at
such meeting, one-third of the Board shall retire from
office by rotation and be eligible for re-election.
Amendments to the relevant provisions of the Articles
will be proposed at the 2006 annual general meeting of
the Company to comply with Code Provisions A.4.1 and
A4.2.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2005.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to HK$5,421,000.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting
of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Wai Wah, Steven
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 23 March 2006
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Auditors’ Report
BB SHREE

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TRULY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Truly
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) from pages 24 to 83 which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair
view. In preparing consolidated financial statements which
give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of
the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

OPINION

in our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2005 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group
for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2006
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Consolidated Income Statement

=

LN
w3 an
For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE_FEREFF-AZF—HILEFE

2005 2004
—EEIF —EER@F
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
MisE FExT FHET
(Restated)
(&3))
Turnover B 6 4,574,079 3,406,992
Cost of sales HER A (3,487,719) (2,615,969)
Gross profit EH| 1,088,360 791,023
Other income Heaplg A 27,438 16,061
Distribution costs DA (73,532) (54,839)
Administrative expenses THE A (164,459) (130,229)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale  FI{EHERE 7 HE
investments &8 (7,800) -
Impairment loss on property, plant NE - BERRBZRE
and equipment EE (6,377) -
Finance costs BEER 8 (19,683) (14,201)
Share of results of an associate EE—REEAREE (382) 113
Profit before taxation BRI ATEF 841,505 | 607,928
Income tax expense FRERiBX 9 (139,457) | (81,427)
T
Profit for the year AEERF 10 702,048 526,501
Dividends BRE 13 219,992 180,651
Earnings per share BRAERN 14
Basic EX HKSL.548 T HK$1.1878 7T
Diluted EE HKSL1.50/8 T HK$1.13/E 7T
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HREERE

At 31 December 2005
R-BRREF+-A=+—8

2005 2004
—¥BHEE | —TEOF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Ft s FRT FHT
(Restated)
(E5])
Non-current assets ETMBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB KRB 15 1,094,452 803,652
Prepaid lease payments ERBERE 16 98,267 88,532
Intangible assets BREE 17 19,402 28,796
Goodwill e 18 443 413
Interest in an associate —REE DR 2 19 1,086 1,285
Available-for-sale investments ARNERE 20 - -
Investment securities BHEEE 21 - 7,800
Deferred tax assets BEBEAE 28 415 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of MEBDE BEE
property, plant and equipment RES RS 80,592 -
1,274,627 930,478
Current assets RBEE
inventories e 22 549,9%4 445,500
Prepaid lease payments FERHEERE 16 2,456 1,713
Trade and other receivables FENRBRTE R E b fE Uk
IE 23 753,253 550,832
Short-term loans receivable EEREER 24 - 1,500
Amount due from an associate EUR—REE N FIRIE 447 1,071
Tax recoverable A[ W B R TE 1,967 1,465
Bank balances and cash RITREERRS 848,436 476,388
2,158,553 1,478,469
Current liabilities TENRE
Trade and other payables FERTEEREMES
®E 25 921,764 508,463
Tax liabilities HEBE 98,728 49,836
Obligations under finance leases BEMOER 26 - 5,326
Bank borrowings RITEE 27 181,837 | 194,671
1,202,426 758,296
Net current assets REEESE 954,127 720,173
Total assets less current liabilities EERERERYEE 2,225,754 1,650,651
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Consolidated Balance Sheet FS B EERE

At 31 December 2005
R-FFAFFT-_A=+—8H

2005 1 2004
—281F —EERE
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
Fi sk FHT FET
(Restated)
(7))

Non-current liabilities EREBE
Obligations under finance leases BMEMENES 26 - 5,313
Bank borrowings RITEE 27 243,559 218,029
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIBERE 28 38,150 19,370
287,709 242,712
1,938,045 1,407,939

Capital and reserves BARRGER
Share capital BR AN 29 45,816 45,168
Reserves #E 1,892,229 1,362,771
1,938,045 1,407,939

The financial statements on pages 24 to 83 were approved HNE24EESIEZURBRER —BERE=
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March A+ ZE#EESHERFETIR YHTHE

2006 and are signed on its behalf by: EREFS:

Lam Wai Wah, Steven Wong Pong Chun, James
iR ERE

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EE BE

2 6 Truly internationai Heldings Limited EFEBER QT




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE_FRAFF+AZ+—HILFE

Capital
redemption
Share Share  Special  reserve  Negative Exchange Other  Retained
capital  premium  reseve  EAME  goodwil JeSEre  reserves profits Total

RE BEEN SRR MR RER AEME  RRER Rmmy 4
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKE'000  HKS'000  HKE'000  HKE'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TROTER TAR TET WAL TR TAL WBRL AR

At 1 January 2004 R-BERE-A-E 44425 250,288 990 82 996 2,004 - 696447 995232

Exchangs differences arising BEEMNIY ERFEA

ontranslation of foreign ~ FARBARERER

operations recognised JINEEE

directly in equity - - ~ - - 312 - - 312
Profit for the year KEEEH - - - - - - - 526501 526,501

Total recognised income ~ AEECHIMALE

for the year - - - - - KiVj - 526501 526,813
Shares issued at premium R EEARE 43 15512 - - - - - - 18315
Dividends paid 2HRE - - - - - - - {130421) (130,421}

At31December 2004as  HZTETEET-AZT-H

originally stated {B%25) 45,168 265,860 990 82 99 2,316 - 1,092,527 1,407,939
Effects of changes in SHERED PR

accaunting policies (RHsEE)

(See Nate 2) - - - - [e%6) - - 996 -
At 1 January 2005 R-EERF-A-8

as restated (&3) 45,168 265,860 990 8 - 23 - 1,093,523 1,407,939

Exchange differences arising RESNTELHHEL

on translation of foreign ~ MARRZARERES

operations recognised IHEEE

directly in equity - - - - - 23793 - - 879
Profit for the year REFEH - - - - - - 702,048 702,048

Total recognised income  AEECHRARALE

for the year - - - - - 23793 - 702,048 725841
Shares issued at premium  REERIR 648 13571 - - - - - - 14219
Transfer 8% - - - - - - 125543 (125543) -
Dividends paid BfiRE - - - - - - - {209,954) (209,954)
At 33 December 2005 RoRERETZAZ+-B 45818 279,431 9%0 82 - 26409 125343 4,480,074 4,938,045
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity ‘IR &R BE R

For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE_FFRF+-A=+—HITFE

The special reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisitions.

Other reserves comprises statutory surplus reserve and
enterprise expansion reserve of the subsidiaries established
in the People’s Republic of China other than Hong Kong (the
“PRC"). According to the Articles of Association of the PRC
subsidiaries, a percentage of net profit as reported in the
PRC statutory accounts should be transferred to statutory
surplus reserve and enterprise expansion reserve determined
at the discretion of the board of directors of these companies.
The statutory surplus reserve can be used to set off
accumulated loss whilst the enterprise expansion reserve can
be used for expansion of production facilities or increase in
registered capital.

Truly International Holdings Limited ER/ERBRER A
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE-ERRFES _A=+—HIEE

2005 2004
—EZTF —TTmE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&51)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES G-
Profit before taxation FREEFTET 841,505 607,928
Adjustments for: A
Interest income M BYA (14,536) (1,477)
Amortisation of development BRI
expenditure 9,455 9,455
Amortisation of trademarks BiEEE 344 373
Amortisation of goodwill BEms - 118
Write-off of development expenditure ~ WHEBREIZH - 781
Depreciation and amortisation of WEREEDE BB REE
property, plant and equipment 148,204 110,708
Amortisation of prepaid lease EEEAEENE
payments 2,456 1,713
Loss on disposal/write-off of hE MENE - BERSE
property, plant and equipment Z2EE 4,197 2,362
Release of government grant BRREEE) (4,856) (1,162)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale  RIftHERE 2 HEER
investments 7,800 -
Impairment loss on property, plant V¥ BE REREZ RERSE
and equipment 6,377 -
Finance costs HRER 19,683 14,201
Share of results of an associate BiE—REtEnm%E 382 (113)
Operating cash flows before FRITEEE SRR 2EYE
movements in working capital ReRg 1,024,711 744,887
Increase in inventories FEHEM (104,065) (154,405)
Increase in trade and other receivables [EURERIE X H b FE UGN IEE N (196,862) (144,452)
Decrease in amount due from FRUR —BR B & 0 B RRIER D
an associate - 1,308
Increase in trade and other payables  FE{TERER R E M e SIEIE N0 413,051 209,184
Effect of realignment of foreign BRERZEE
exchange rate 3,673 (31)
Cash generated from operations MEEBFRREIZRS 1,143,514 656,492
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERAEERIEH (35,619) (17,370)
PRC Enterprise income Tax paid PR ERER (37,986€) (45,495)
Overseas tax refunded (paid) BB (B8 EHNEIE 135 (319)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RE¥BFEE 2 FHERSE 1,070,044 593,308
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement RS H & RAR

For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE_FFREF+-A=+—HUFE

2005 2004
—Z8IRF ZEFNEFE
KK$ 000 HK$'000
FHT FET
(Restated)
(&%)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXY
Purchase of property, plant and BEDE BERSE
equipment (434,767) (187,195)
Deposits paid for acquisition of WRmE BERREZ
property, plant and equipment EftES (60,592) -
Addition of prepaid lease payments A EEREE N {12,923) -
Acquisition of intangible assets B A S E (405) (253)
Interest received AN 14,536 1,477
Decrease in short-term loans receivable 55 HRFEU & 7R 4 1,500 2,437
Amount repaid from an associate —REEAREERE 624 -
Purchase of investment securities BEESRE - (7,800)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEDE BREREREMERA
plant and equipment - 100
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REXKFFEBzFERSE
ACTIVITIES (492,027) (191,234)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETH
Repayment of bank borrowings BBRITEE (236,226) (583,420)
Dividends paid 2R (209,954) (130,421)
Interest paid on bank borrowings BRIRITEER R {1.9,468) (13,812)
Payment of obligations under finance  RIERNBEBNR
leases (10,63%) (10,432)
Interest paid on obligations under BERBERNBEE AR
finance leases (247) (389)
New bank borrowings raised FERITIEE 255,398 631,226
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRMHAEIA 14,219 16,315
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING REZBFERAZRHED
ACTIVITIES (208,885) (90,933)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRELEEERENTE
EQUIVALENTS 371,132 311,141
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FYUzRERBESEEER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 476,012 164,556
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EXpEEE
CHANGES 1,292 315
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND H#zREeRRESEEHEE
OF THE YEAR . 848,436 476,012
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH RERASSEEAZHH
EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash BOTEERRS 848,436 476,388
Bank overdrafts BITEX - (376)
848,436 476,012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE_FERFTIA=+—RUFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company. The Company is a public limited
company with its shares listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the section
headed “General Information” to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business
of manufacture and sale of liquid crystal display (“‘LCD")
products and electronic consumer products including
MP3 players, calculators and electronic components.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, a number of new Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS(s)”), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS(s)") and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “new HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2005. The application of
the new HKFRSs has resulted in a change in the
presentation of the consolidated income statement,
consolidated balance sheet and consolidated statement
of changes in equity. In particular, the presentation of
share of tax of an associate has been changed. The
changes in presentation have been applied
retrospectively. The adoption of the new HKFRSs has
resulted in changes to the Group’s accounting policies
in the following areas that have an effect on how the
results for the current and/or prior accounting years are
prepared and presented:
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ERMsT RGBT ERYIER
HER
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BEEREER]) BEEER (B8
FHER) RBRE (TXRE EEVBER
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &5 BRI R KM

For the year ended 31 December 2005
HE_FFHAFF=A=+—-AUFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. EHAHIIREBIETEBHER

32

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AR 45
(Continued)
Business combinations ERRSH

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 3
“Business Combinations” from 1 January 2005. The
principal effects of the application of HKFRS 3 to the
Group are summarised below:

Goodwill

In previous years, goodwill arising on acquisitions was
capitalised and amortised over its estimated useful life.
The Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions
in HKFRS 3 so that on 1 January 2005 the Group
eliminated the carrying amount of the related
accumulated amortisation of HK$177,000 with a
corresponding decrease in the cost of goodwill (see note
18). The Group has discontinued amaortising such
goodwill from 1 January 2005 onwards and such goodwill
will be tested for impairment at least annually. Goodwill
arising on acquisitions after 1 January 2005 is measured
at cost less accumulated impairment losses (if any) after
initial recognition. As a result of this change in accounting
policy, no amortisation of goodwill has been charged in
the current year. Comparative figures for 2004 have not
been restated.

Excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost (previously known as “negative
gooawill”)

In accordance with HKFRS 3, any excess of the Group's
interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of acquisition (“discount on acquisition”) is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
acquisition takes place. In previous years, negative
goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001
was held in reserves. In accordance with the relevant
transitional provisions in HKFRS 3, the Group
derecognised all negative goodwill on 1 January 2005
(of which negative goodwill of HK$996,000 was
previously recorded in reserves). A corresponding credit
to the Group's retained earnings of HK$996,000 has
been made.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANGIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Financial instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 32
“Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” and
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”. HKAS 32 requires retrospective
application. HKAS 39, which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005, generally
does not permit the recognition, derecognition or
measurement of financial assets and liabilities on a
retrospective basis. The application of HKAS 32 has had
no material impact on how financial instruments of the
Group are presented for current and prior accounting
periods. The principal effects resulting from the
implementation of HKAS 39 are summarised below.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities

The Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions
in HKAS 39 with respect to the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are within the scope of HKAS 39.

By 31 December 2004, the Group classified and
measured its equity securities in accordance with the
benchmark treatment of Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 24 (“SSAP 24"} issued by the
HKICPA. Under SSAP 24, investments in equity
securities, which are securities held for an identified long
term strategic purpose, are classified as “investment
securities”. “Investment securities” are carried at cost
less any impairment losses. From 1 January 2005
onwards, the Group has classified and measured its
equity securities in accordance with HKAS 39. Under
HKAS 39, financial assets are classified as “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss”, “available-
for-sale financial assets”, “loans and receivables”, or
“held-to-maturity financial assets”. “Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss” and “available-for-sale
financial assets” are carried at fair value, with changes
in fair values recognised in profit or loss and equity
respectively. Available-for-sale equity investments that
do not have quoted market prices in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost less impairment after initial recognition.
“Loans and receivables” and “held-to-maturity financial
assets” are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method after initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2005
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F_FFAFA=+—BUFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continueq)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities (Continued)

On 1 January 2005, the Group classified and measured
its equity securities as available-for-saie investment in
accordance with the transitional provisions of HKAS 39
but there was no effect on the retained profits of the
Group at 1 January 2005.

Derecognition

HKAS 39 provides more rigorous criteria for the
derecognition of financial assets than the criteria applied
in previous periods. Under HKAS 39, a financial asset is
derecognised, when and only when, either the contractual
rights to the asset’'s cash flows expire, or the asset is
transferred and the transfer qualifies for derecognition
in accordance with HKAS 39. The decision as to whether
a transfer qualifies for derecognition is made by applying
a combination of risks and rewards and control tests.
The Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions
and applied the revised accounting policy prospectively
to transfers of financial assets from 1 January 2005
onwards. As a result, the Group’s bill receivables
discounted with full recourse which were derecognised
prior to 1 January 2005 have not been restated. As at
31 December 2005, the Group's bills receivables
discounted with full recourse have not been derecognised
and are included in trade and other receivables. Instead,
the related borrowings of HK$5,774,000 have been
recognised on the balance sheet date. The relevant
finance costs incurred in order to obtain such borrowings
are included in the carrying amount of the borrowings on
initial recognition and amortised over the terms of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. This
change in accounting policy has had no material effect
on results for the current year.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Owner-occupied leasehold interest in land

In previous years, owner-occupied leasehold land and
buildings were included in property, plant and equipment
and measured using the cost model. In the current year,
the Group has applied HKAS 17 “Leases”. Under HKAS
17, the land and buildings elements of a lease of land
and buildings are considered separately for the purposes
of lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, in which case the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease. To the extent that the
allocation of the lease payments between the land and
buildings elements can be made reliably, the leasehold
interests in land are reclassified to prepaid lease
payments under operating leases, which are carried at
cost and amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. This change in accounting policy has been
applied retrospectively.

Share-based payments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” which requires an expense to
be recognised where the Group buys goods or obtains
services in exchange for shares or rights over shares
(“equity-settled transactions”), or in exchange for other
assets equivalent in value to a given number of shares
or rights over shares (“cash-settled transactions”). The
principal impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group is in relation
to the expensing of the fair value of share options granted
to directors and employees of the Company, determined
at the date of grant of the share options, over the vesting
period. Prior to the application of HKFRS 2, the Group
did not recognise the financial effect of these share
options until they were exercised. The Group has applied
HKFRS 2 to share options granted on or after 1 January
2005. In relation to share options granted before 1
January 2005, the Group chooses not to apply HKFRS 2
with respect to share options granted on or before 7
November 2002 and vested before 1 January 2005. This
change in accounting policy has had no material effect
on results for the current or prior years.

As a result of the changes in the accounting policies
described above, the profit for the year is increased by
HK$118,000 (2004: nil), which is attributable to the non-
amortisation of goodwill which was previously included
in administrative expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 52 & BB R HE

For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE-FFAF+_A=+—HIFF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. ERAFITREHIIEEMER

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS SR
(Continued)
The cumulative effects of the application of the new EAFERSVEBREENR_EENFE+
HKFRSs on 31 December 2004 and 1 January 2005 are ZAZ+—RERZTTRE-A—HBZER
summarised below: ArREEmnT:
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2004 2004 2005
(originally stated) RZTERE R-8BL¥
R-Z2EmE +2A=+-8B -A-A
TZA=T-8  Adustments (restated)  Adjustments (restated)
(R#) #E (&51) 52 (%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TiER TEL TER TAR
Balance sheet items BEARRER
Impact of HKAS 17: FESHENZELINZHE:
Property, plant and equipment 912 BERR 893,897 (30,245) 803,652 - 803,652
Prepaid lease payments BREEMAR - 90,245 90,245 - 90,245
impact of HKAS 39: ERSHENENR I ES:
Investment securities BERE 7,800 - 7,800 (7,800) -
Availableforsale investments  FAIEHEIRE - - - 7,800 7,800
Total effects on assets HEEVBYE 801,697 - 901,697 - 901,697
Retained earnings RERF 1,092,527 - 1,002,527 996 1,093,523
Negative goodwill reserve RERER 996 - 996 (996) -
Total effects on equity HRAZEYE 1,083,523 - 1,093523 © - 1,093,523
The Group has not early applied the following new AEBYEREEATIHCEBERER
standards and interpretations that have been issued but CHEANRRE - FEECHRTALES
are not yet effective. The Group has commenced ERIRREEERE HREETHEN
considering the potential impact of these new standards EHIEREUHRUREFRELERME
and interpretations but is not yet in a position to MRz HARBRTABERFE-

determine whether these new standards and
interpretations would have a significant impact on how
its results of operations and financial position are
prepared and presented.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)
HKAS 1 (Amendment)

HKAS 19 (Amendment)
HKAS 21 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4

(Amendments)
HKFRS 6
HKFRS 7
HK(IFRIC) - INT 4
HK(IFRIC) - INT 5
HK(IFRIC) - INT 6

HK(IFRIC) - INT 7

Capital disclosures?

Actuarial gains and losses, group
plans and disclosures?
Net investment in a foreign opetation?

Cash flow hedge accounting of
forecast intragroup transactions®
The fair value option?

Financial guarantee contracts?

Exploration for and evaltuation of
mineral resources?
Financial instruments: Disclosurest

Determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease?

Rights to interests arising from
decommissioning, restoration and
environmental rehabilitation funds?
Liabilities arising from participating in
a specific market - waste electrical
and electronic equipment®

Applying the restatement approach
under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies*

t Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 December

2005

4 gffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All inter-company transactions and balances within the
Group have been eliminated on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for
which the agreement date is before 1 January 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the relevant subsidiary at the
date of acquisition. For capitalised goodwill arising on
acquisitions, the Group has discontinued amortisation
from 1 January 2005 onwards, and such goodwill is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is
an indication that the cash generating unit to which the
goodwill relates may be impaired.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
subsidiary is presented separately in the balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that financial year. When the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the income statement. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Interests in associates

The resulis and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of
changes in equity of the associates, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. An additional share of losses is
provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable.

Rental income from properties under operating leases
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the relevant
lease term.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than properties
under development, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortisation, and impairment losses.

Buildings in the course of development for production
are carried at cost, less any identified impairment losses.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property within property, plant and equipment,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
uses.
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shorter, using the straight-line method.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other
property, plant and equipment, other than properties
under development, over their estimated useful lives,
using the reducing balance method.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at
costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the income statement
when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on
a straightlline basis over its estimated useful life.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Research and development expenditure (Continued)
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Trademarks

Costs incurred in the registration of trademarks are
capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives.

Impairment (other than goodwill)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated seliing price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into either
loans and receivables or avaiiable-for-sale financial
assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets
are set out below.

Loans and trade receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, short-term loans
receivable, amount due from an associate and bank
balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment |osses are reversed
in subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject
10 a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, for available-for-
sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the asset and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a simiiar financial asset.
Such impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent
periods.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities other than financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, including bank borrowings,
obligations under finance leases and trade and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Government grants are recognised as income over the
periods necessary to match them with the related costs.
Grants related to depreciable assets are released to
income over the useful lives of the assets. Grants related
to expense items are recognised in the same period as
those expenses are charged in the consolidated income
statement and are reported separately as other income.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease
obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged
directly to profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy
on borrowing costs.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on
a straight-line basis.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years, and it further excludes income statement items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the halance
sheet date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or
credited in the income statement, except when it relates
to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the transiation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date,
and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised as a separate component of equity
(the exchange reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or ioss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.
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KEY SOURGCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment with respect to depreciation, management
estimates the useful lives of various categories of
property, plant and equipment according to the industrial
experiences gained over the development history of the
Group and also by reference to the relevant industrial
norm.

Impairment of intangible assets

As a long-term strategic investment, the progress of
Organic Light Emitting Display (“OLED”) business
development has been closely monitored since its first
introduction. With the successful subscription of a valid
licence to manufacture and market and the deployment
of an up-to-standard production plant, this business
division has already been proven a viable project both in
supplying to in-house demand as a synergy for other LCD
products and for external sales. Although its profitability
has yet to be improved, according to the projected
financial information, there will be no question to the
recoverability of the related investment cost in the
medium term.

FINANCIAL RISK WANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES ARND POLIGIES

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
investments, bank borrowings, obligations under finance
lease, loans receivable, amount due from an associate,
trade and other receivables, bank balances and cash,
and trade and other payables. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

4.

et THAEE 2 T BRF

ME BERREBEZITEAED
EREEDE BERREFEZSHEE
B EREGTSENE BERRELZAE
REMNE DUAEERREETHREZT
RERAKE LRSSRERITER-

B EERE

ERRERHRE AREESIEFEER
BHRBETREGERE NREEERAERE
B-RBEEEREEREHER SRBE
EBERE EERBLEBSBELRER
SENBEMLCOESTRREFIDHE
ZATEE-BERAMBENBTRERR
ENERRUE HEPHLAKREDERIR

CREBEEEERESK

FEBZFEBTARERRIRE §]17
BE BEROHELT BRER BR R
BAFRE IR R IR RTT
B R U RBRRR R EAEREE-
FHSRIAFBERSEMMERE 2
EeMIAZEERRRARRERRE
RTIX-ERESEERETARAR BT
ERBERERSEERE.
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BEZFRAF+-A=+—BitFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMERNT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk

(1

(if)

(iif)

Currency risk

The Group have foreign currency sales and
purchases and certain borrowings of the Group are
denominated in foreign currencies, and the majority
of the bank balances are denominated in foreign
currencies (comprising United States dollars,
Japanese Yen and Renminbi) which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arises.

Interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates to
floating-rate bank borrowings (note 27). The Group’s
fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-
rate short-term bank fixed deposits. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arises. The
fair value of the Group’s bank balances is
approximate to the carrying amount as the fixed
deposits are shortterm.

Market risk

The Group’'s businesses are heavily relying on the
PRC market (75%) and the L.CD products (96%) by
which situation the Group is exposed to market risk.
However, it has been the Group’s policy since its
incorporation to diversify its businesses in different
geographical and product segments so as to
minimise these risks. The management keeps close
watch on the matter and does all necessary
procedures to contain this market risk.

Truly international Holdings Limited ESRBRSRALT
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5. FINANCIAL RISX MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLLCIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are bank balances
and cash, trade and other receivables, short-term loans
receivable, amount due from an associate and available-
for-sale investments. The Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in the event of the counterparties failure to
perform their obligations at 31 December 2005 in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount shown in the consolidated balance
sheet.

The credit risk on liguid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
and other receivables. The amounts presented in the
balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful
receivables.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC. The Group has no other
significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

5. ¢RRREEBERIEEE @

EERAR
FEBZIRSREERBITEFRAS
FEUR R R A IR B I E R B
W—REBEQTREBEARTHEEZRE-
HWEAREBRITEET AEEERR R
AEME FEBERARZESEERERR
IEERFT AT -HRABEEER
BRI 2 REE:

TR EERRER BE T AKER
FETAEBETESEERR 2RI

AEERERE T ZRE RRUERR
HEtEKFE-BERERAZIIZEHC
R TR R R R A

BREFEERR *RREBEEL LKA
AEEEEELR FEABRREMERE
FrRRETRETHNERERBER- I
S rEHEENSEEERRENESE
Bzl EeE BREMEZROSEE
HRARESE-RET S FRREERS
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & M MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2005
BHE-_PERAFF_A=+—-AUFE

6. TURNOVER 6. &I
Turnover represents the net proceeds received and EREEAFEHEERZKRERER
receivable on the sale of goods during the year, and is FEEE AS5ET:
analysed as follows:
2005 2004
—BBRF ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT | FET
Sales of LCD products HERARBETEES 4,389,588 3,138,393
Sales of electronic consumer HEETFHBER
products 184,491 268,599
4,574,079 3,406,992

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 7. HERWEDS

SEGMENTS
Business segments KBoE
For management purposes, the Group is currently HREEENME AEEEEERALER
organised into two operating divisions — LCD products - REBRERREREETEEES TS
and electronic consumer products. These divisions are BUNESBIERSBETESEER 2
the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment =
information.
Principal activities are as follows: FEERWT:
LCD products ~ manufacture and distribution BABERSE - HERIHASEETR
of LCD products Em BEL
Electronic consumer - manufacture and distribution EFHBESR — HERMSEETHEEE
products of electronic consumer A
products

5 O Truly International Holdings Limited SR BBER AT




7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 7.
SEGWMENTS (continued)
Business segments (Continued)
Segment information about these businesses is

ERRUWESE B

EZ: 3k NE )
WERBZBERZN M

presented below:

2005 ZBREEF
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products
R ZFHE Consolidated
BTRBER ER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 |
FHET FBx TER
REVENUE W2
External sales Gh 38 4,389,588 184,491 4,574,079
RESULT ®iE
Segment result SRR 838,578 23,725 862,303
Interest income FEd A 14,536
Unallocated corporate ol BWA/NCIE- =
expenses (1,092)
Impairment loss on AHHEREZHE
available-for-sale investments B (7,800) - (7,800)
Impairment ioss on property, ME-BEREREY
plant and equipment HiEEE - (6,377) (8,377)
Finance costs HRER (19,683)
Share of results of an EE—REL DT
associate Et - (382) (382)
Profit before taxation B AT A 841,808
Income tax expense FIISH I (139,457)
Profit for the year AEEER 702,048 |
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements fR & MR R E

For the year ended 31 December 2005
HE-RERAF+-A=+—HUFE

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPKICAL 7. ¥¥REDSE®

SEGMENTS (continued)

Business segments (Continued) ERSE(E)
BALANCE SHEET BEREER
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products
B E7HT Consolidated
BTRBER Em #e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FHERT FERT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 2,308,919 267,357 2,576,276
Interest in an associate —RBENT ZER - 1,086 1,086
Deferred tax assets BIERBEAE 418
Tax recoverable BEEE3E 1,867
Unallocated corporate assets RNBZAREE 848,436
Consolidated total assets REEERE 3,428,180
LIABILITIES =i |
Segment liabilities SEEE 883,006 38,527 921,533
Tax liabilities RIEA R 98,728
Deferred tax liabilities BEREHIEAE 38,150
Unallocated corporate liabilities FABRZDFAE 431,724
Consolidated total liabilities LeEaREesH 1,490,135
OTHER INFORMATION Hi &
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products
BREE ZEFHE Consclidated
BRSBER B &xe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HIKS$'000
FHExT FHEx FExT
Capital additions bRl - i 435,444 60,320 495,764
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 134,775 26,384 161,159
Loss on disposal/write-off HE W,
of property, - BERE
plant and equipment ZE8 - 4,197 4,197
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7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 7. H£BRUMEDE =
SEGMENTS (continued)

Business segments (Continued) EKSE (E)
2004 —EENE
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products
REEE BEFHEE Consolidated
BRERER Ef e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
REVENUE s
External sales Sh 8 3,138,393 268,599 3,406,992
RESULT ]
Segment result SHEEE 618,989 2,625 621,614
Interest income F B A 1,477
Unallocated corporate expenses RO BZATES (1,075)
Finance costs B EA . (14,201)
Share of results of an associate  EE—REENTEE - 113 113
Profit before taxation M AR T 607,928
Income tax expense % o (81,427)
Profit for the year REFHF 526,501
Annual Report 2005 £ 5 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE-_FFAF+-_A=+—RAUFE

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 7. EBERHESE @

SEGMENTS (continued)

54

Business segments (Continued) ¥%omEE
BALANCE SHEET BEBEER
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products
R EFEE  Consolidated
BATRRED B RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets SHEAE 1,722,240 197,876 1,920,116
Interest in an associate —REE QT 2 - 1,285 1,285
Investment securities BHERE 7,800 - 7,800
Tax recoverable AU E RS 1,465
Unallocated corporate assets KO ZRBAE 478,281
Consolidated total assets HERERE 2,408,947
LIABILITIES =R |
Segment liabilities SEEAE 465,083 43,184 508,267
Tax liabilities HMEgE 49,836
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFRIERE 19,370
Unallocated corporate liabilities F o AN = 423,535
Consolidated total liabilities MEBREEE 1,001,008
OTHER INFORMATION HigEs
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products  Consolidated
AR ETHE
BTSRER ER RE
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET FET
Capital additions BINER 144,930 42,518 187,448
Depreciation and amortisation TEREHE 105,635 16,732 122,367
Loss on disposal/write-off HEWIEDE - BE
of property, R BB
plant and equipment 1,059 1,303 2,362
Write-off of development BRI
expenditure - 781 781

Truly International Holdings Limited (S HEEERA T




BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (continued)

Geographical segments

The Group’s manufacturing operation is located in the
PRC. The sales and marketing functions are located at
all reportable segments as listed below.

The turnover of the Group, analysed by iocation of
customers, is as follows:

HERWESE @

BESE

FREZHERBURTE EERTSE
BREBAGR TXRENZHBLE.

FEERCES RS T2 E R8T

Turnover by
geographical segments

EHESEIS 2 EH
2005 2004
—S¥RF —ETOEF
HX$’'000 HK$'000
TR T
PRC F 3,433,919 2,265,565
South Korea meE 587,569 443,167
Japan B 175,194 241,350
Hong Kong B0 147,980 135,207
Europe B 119,132 | 113,778
Others Hfo 110,285 | 207,925
4,574,079 | 3,406,992

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
segment assets, and additions to property, plant and

UTREEEFENBOMZOBEER
HEURREZDE BEREBARER

equipment and intangible assets, analysed by the EE:
geographical area in which the assets are located:

Additions to
property, plant
and equipment

Carrying {including deposits)

amount of and intangible assels

segment assels NE-BERRE (BEED)

SHEEREE UREEEEZRD
2005 | 2004 2005 2004
“EE8IF | ZZETENF ZBERE | —TE@EF
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT FET TET
PRC e 2,034,590 1,439,717 494,752 179,408
Hong Kong &5 1,349,532 945,114 915 7,792
Europe BUM 20,086 13,179 15 222
Others Efh 26,557 10,937 82 26
3,427,765 | 2,408,947 495,764 187,448
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BE_FEAFFA=1+—HUFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BMBER
2005 ﬁ 2004
—ZEERE ZETNE
KK®$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest on: A ‘
Bank borrowings wholly BRAEREHEEY !
repayable within five years HITEE 19,466 13,812
Finance leases BEMLY 217 389
13,683 14,201
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FAIEHZxH
2005 2004
ZEERRE —EFTmE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET y FET
Current tax: ARHERFIE
Hong Kong HE 50,697 29,976
PRC $ 73,661 46,635
Other jurisdictions HiBEEE 254 657
124,612 77,268
(Over)underprovision in prior years: MAEEE GRERE) BETE:
Hong Kong FE (4,850) 1,330
PRC # 1,330 299
(3,520) 1,629
Deferred tax (note 28): EIERIE (PIEE5E2818)
Current year AEEF 18,365 2,530
132,457 81,427

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2004
17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation arising in PRC and other jurisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant

jurisdictions.

Truly International Holdings Limited SR BB SR AT
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9.

INCOWIE TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
one of the Company's PRC subsidiaries, BE&EWE
{EF|LEEBER N T, is entitled to exemption from PRC
enterprise income tax for the first two years commencing
from its first profit-making year of operation and
thereafter, this PRC subsidiary will be entitled to a 50%

relief from PRC enterprise income tax of 24% for the
following three years starting from 2003.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

9. FrEFHIH @
R BIEAEREA AATED R
mEBARERENETEMFERE
RoB BN SEEN  EEEEETE
REERBREFEDCERER MAPENE
AREREZZET=FR=FZATRD
ZER (FRERE24%) 2 50%E 5

FEFZRBT BN SR BB ENER

before taxation per the income statement as follows: ZHIERIN TR :
2005 W 2004
“EEREFE | —ZTTOmF
HK$'00C || HK$'000
FHER | FHET
o

Profit before taxation REHETHF 844,505 | 607,928
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BESBMEBTELT.5% ‘

of 17.5% FTE A 147,263 J 106,393
Tax effect of share of results of i —REERRIREZ ,

an associate REEE 87 | 5
Tax effect of expenses not TRfIR ST 2 AR (

deductible for tax purpose 4,099 | 3,153
Tax effect of income not taxable TR RBMUAZ RIS (

for tax purpose (2,324) | (472)
(Over)underprovision in respect of LG E (BBEEE) BETZ (

prior year (3,520) | 1,629
Tax effect of tax losses not REBRBEBIRBEY |

recognised 4,769 726
Tax effect of other deductible FERAMTHNHYRER

temporary differences not 2R |

recognised 1,374 | -
Tax effect of utilisation of tax BN R ERERCRBES ‘

losses previously not recognised 2R (1,185) | (225)
Effect of different tax rates of REMEEERZE B [

subsidiaries operating in UNGIE RS g2 ;

other jurisdictions 41,577 | 24,480
Effect of tax concession granted FENBLRAERRBEERSR }

to a PRC subsidiary ZE (72,208) (40,816)
Effect of Hong Kong Profits Tax on BB EEBIIEH

concessionary rate (note) 28 (i) - (13,495)
Effect of cessation of concessionary &R IEUBBEREHE ’

rate of Hong Kong Profits ERFGHEBERL

Tax on opening deferred REREZEE
tax liability (note) (Bd3%) 19,474 -

Others Hitw 79 79
Tax expense for the year FEERBEZH 139,457 81,457
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for the year ended 31 December 2005

#HE=

9.

FREFF-_A=f—HUFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Note: In prior year, for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes, one of the
Company’s subsidiaries has been claiming that 50% of its
assessable profit attributable to its manufacturing operation
in the PRC was offshore in nature and non-taxable. In current
year, this subsidiary has changed its mode of operation so
that its assessable profit is chargeable to Hong Kong Profits

Tax at 17.5%.

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

9. FEEXH®
Mgk RUEFE REBEEFERME A2
AEF—RHBARCBBEENS0%RER
MRFIDRERPEHERY- &2%%&;—
MEREBRRR-NEREE ZHBL
TR EBER Lﬁizﬁﬁiﬁu%ﬁﬁﬂ»{%
RIS BRBEL7 5%R -

10. FEEmT

2005 2004
—EBBRF ZERRE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
Profit for the year has been arrived REFRMBE GEA)
at after charging (crediting): THEEEBER:
Depreciation and amortisation on: LTEBEZITEREN:
Property, plant and equipment ME -BEREE 148,804 | 110,708
Prepaid lease payments BB ERE 2,456 1,713
Development expenditure included BRI M GTABERR)
in cost of sales 9,455 9,455
Trademarks included in BEGIATRER)
administrative expenses 344 373
Goodwill included in administrative mEGEASTEER)
expenses - 118
164,159 122,367
Staff costs, inclusive of directors’ BIRK(REEEHE):
remuneration:
Salaries and other benefits e REAMAIER| 187,576 148,643
Retirement benefits scheme BRERETRIER
contributions 8,515 6,108
196,091 { 154,751
Auditors’ remuneration ZEMHE 4
Current year REFR 1,693 \ 1,278
Underprovision in prior year REEERETZE 50 270
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, H&, #M#ENE BER
plant and equipment BB EE 4,197 2,362
Net foreign exchange loss SNEEEISE 22,634 9,265
Operating lease rental in respect of: ﬁ’“?ﬁf{]ﬁiﬁ}ié
Rented premises THEDE 3,301 ' 2,695
Other equipment EfbaeE 538 587
Research costs (included in cost RRAR GrABEERL)
of sales) 13,655 10,811
Write-off of development expenditure HEBEX H - 781
Share of tax of an associate BIE—REE L THIE
(included in share of results of (GrtABEHE—R \
an associate) DEHEE) - 30
Interest income B A (14,538) | (1,477)
Rental income under operating lease, EEBHzBEWA
with negligible outgoings (B PEXH) (1,803) | (1,745)

Of the consolidated profit for the year of
HK$702,048,000 (2004: HK$526,501,000), a
HK$224,937,000 (2004: HK$130,976,000) has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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41. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Lam
Wal Wah, Li
Steven Cheung Jian
{Chairman Wong Tat Hua
and Pong Sang, (Production
Managing Chun, James Managing
Director) James {Marketing  Director)
WEE (Executive Director) FEE  Chung  IpCho
(& Director) HEE (£EH Kam Ting,  Meung
REE EFf (WHER EE  Kkwong Spencer KaiSing Total
a8 (BrEE EE  48®)  EBx  EEE ERW ag
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TEL  TAL THn TET  TEr  TAT TET  TAR
2005 ZHBEE
Directors’ fees: j 38
Executive #ir - - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BuFERs - - - - 88 30 30 448
Other emoluments paidto the ~ XfEFHAEE
executive directors: EfuMe:
Salaries and other benefits FEREAERN 2068 4385 A58 1440 - - - 3,469
Performance related incentive =~ E¥HEH2 %%
payments - - 1,280 4,200 - - - 2,450
Contributions to retirement BB ELR
benefit scheme 2 24 24 i2 - - - 84
2,072 1,409 2,840 2,652 88 30 30 9,484
2004 Ik 2
Directors' fees; Ezpe:
Executive #17 - - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive Buns - - - - 60 20 2 100
Other emoluments paidtothe  ZRTFHAEEZ
executive directors: Eelis:
Salaries and other benefits EREMEN 2032 1386 1500 1,200 - - - 6098
Performance related incentive ~ EEBHHL %4
payments 3,992 - 1,100 650 - - - 5,742
Contributions to retirement RIVBRETEIES
benefit scheme 24 24 24 12 - - - 84
6,048 1,390 2,624 1,862 60 20 20 12,024

Note: The performance related incentive payments is determined
as a percentage of the turnover and operating profit of the
Group for the two years ended 31 December 2005.

Mish: BEREHIESDRAREEE-_2T
EE+ZAZT-BUIREFEZEEH
REERFNZETAOHHEE
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BE-RFREFT-A=+—HUFE

iz2.

13.

EWIPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, three (2004: three) were directors of the
Company whose emoluments are set out in note 11

iz

. BEEHIE

FEETEERHFMALERREZR (22T
ME: ZEB)ARRZ2ER EHEHEBEEH
R EXHEELIIE - RSEME (ZFFNF:

above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2004: ME)EBZBHemT:
two) individuals were as follows:
200% 2004
—Eg0F —ETME
HiK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FEx
Salaries and other benefits FeREMER 2,406 1,792
Performance related incentive WBEEHBES
payments 3,030 1,147
Contributions to retirement BERERNGBER
benefit scheme 24 24
5,460 2,963
Their emoluments were within the following bands: FHREEME BN T:
2005 2004
—E23HF “ETWE
Number of Number of
employees employees
EE®E EE®E
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 %1,500,000/8 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% T2 2,000,000/ T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T%E 2,500,000/ 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ T E 3,500,000/ 7T i -
DIVIDENDS 13. BB
2005 2004
—ETHF “EFEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Interim dividend paid of EIREFERE
23 HK cents %235
(2004: 17 HK cents) per share (ZZFMF 178 105,378 76,762
Final dividend proposed of ERREERERE
25 HK cents BRE25531l
(2004: 23 HK cents) per share (ZETIMFE:2375) 114,614 103,889
219,982 180,651
The final dividend of 25 HK cents (2004: 23 HK cents) REREEH25E L (ZEEMEFE 233

per share has been proposed by the directors and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per

14. BREF|

FREABN R SBREIRMNDIZTIE

share is based on the following data: BErE:
2005 2004
—E85RF —EEEE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FE&T
Earnings for the purposes of basic FFESRELRRTIR
and diluted earnings per share EREERNZBF 702,048 526,501
2005 I 2004
ZEFREF ZEEMF
Number of Number of
shares shares
gl BB
Weighted average number of FEtEERER
ordinary shares for the purposes  ZF| 7 15
of basic earnings per share EiEAREE 455,489,623 447,983,270
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BE T EREETE
shares — share options — BN 12,969,191 | 18,571,052
Weighted average number of BiEstEEREE ‘
ordinary shares for the purposes &2 IIEFEH |
of diluted earnings per share ZRREE 468,458,814 || 466,554,322
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &S I B RHVEE

For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE _RPAF+-A=+—HUFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMIENT 15. YE-BERRZE

62

Furniture,
fixtures and Properties
equipment Plant and Motor under
Bulldings FREX machinery vehicles  development Total
B¥ ERE  HERHE RE REPHE 88
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin TExn Tin TR Thx THR
CosT RAE
At 1 January 2004 RoEEME-F-B 278,063 110,446 914,562 11,018 15,633 1,329,722
Currency realignment ERAE - 112 - - - 112
Transfer to other property, ~ BBIZEHHE
plant and equipment BRREE 15,155 - - - (15,155) -
Additions RE - 21,191 152,060 8207 5,737 187,195
Disposals/write-0ff HE/RE - (511) (12,416) (925) - (13,852}
At 31 December 2004 ROBERET-AZ+-H 293,218 131,238 1,054,206 18,300 6,215 1,503,177
Currency realignment EEHE 681 2,605 17,625 148 15 21,074
Transfer to other property,  BBEZHEHE
plant and equipment BEDRE 37,002 - 308 - (37.400) -
Additions wE 303 20,582 379,142 883 33,857 434,767
Disposals/write-off HE/HH - - {14,644} - - (14,644)
At 31 Decembar 2005 ROBBRE+-RA=+-0 331,294 154,425 1,436,637 19,331 2,687 1,944 374
DEPRECIATION, E B8
AMORTISATION REE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2004 RZEEmFE-F—8 55,308 68,705 467,620 8,490 - 600,123
Currency realignment EuRE - 34 - - - 84
Provided for the year FEERE 7,027 10,662 89,780 3,239 - 110,708
Eliminated on disposals) & /B
write-off - (276) (10,298) (816) - {11,390)
At 31 December 2004 RZFEMF+-F=+—H 62,33 79,175 547,102 10,913 - 699,525
Currency realignment BEAE 218 1,143 7,083 118 - 8,563
Provided for the year FEERE 8,266 12,356 125,753 2529 - 148,904
Impaiment loss recognised  RUBRTHRZ
inthe income statement  HESE - - 6,377 - - 6,377
Eliminated on disposalsy & /Hay ki
witeoff - - (10,447) - - (10,447
At 31 December 2005 RZBEIF+-A=+-8 10,820 92,674 675,868 13,560 - 852,922
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2005 RIESARE+-A=+-0 260474 64,751 760,769 5171 2,687 1,094,452
A3LDecember 2004 HIZEMETTAST—E 230,883 52063 50704 7,387 6215 80365

Truly International Holdings Limited SRR L7




18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The cost of buildings is depreciated over forty years or
the terms of the respective leases, whichever is the
shorter, using a straight-line method.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a reducing balance method at the
following rates per annum:

15. YE-BERRZE @

BFZRANEREUR T EFHTEH
HEFHGEREE) E-

AR BB RREZEEURBERE
BT ERFERE:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% to 50% R REREE 15%Z50%
Plant and machinery 15% to 40% BB k2R 15%ZE40%
Motor vehicles 25% to 45% RE 25%FE 45%
2005 2004
—E22IF —EENE
HK$'000 HK$’000
TR FHET
The carrying value of the Group’s  HitREBEYEE2
property interests shown ZEREEERE:
above comprises: |
[
Leasehold properties in Hong Kong B BN EES j
held under medium term leases HEZHEYE 3,135 3,276
Leasehold properties in the PRC  RIEHEIFEAHES
held under medium term leases #HHZBEDE 257,339 227,607
260,474 [ 230,883

During the year, the directors conducted a review of the
Group’s manufacturing assets and determined that a
number of plant and machinery were impaired, due to
physical damage and technical obsolescence.
Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$6,377,000 have
been recognised in respect of plant and machinery, which
are used in the Group's electronic consumer products
segment, as the directors considered that their fair value
less costs to sell is immaterial.

At 31 December 2004, the net book value of plant and
machinery included an amount of HK$14,700,000 in
respect of assets held under finance leases.

KEERN BEHAEBEEERTT
ER AT - THREZEERBEBLNAE
FEVBE RN AR ME R E B
FEEARBRALEETHEERSSE
FEBNEEREEs A FENREEX
AR G EERREEE6,377,0008

TT°

RoBEME+—A=Z+—0 BERESS
EEFERERBERAHEOmMEEZ %
BE14,700,0008 T2 EE-
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &8 B I8 & M

For the year ended 31 December 2005
HE-_FEAF+-_A=+—814+FF

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

16. BHERE

2005 2004
—EERE “ETRE
HK$' 000 HK$'000
FET THET
The Group’s prepaid lease REBEBEFEENER
payments comprise: BiE:
Leasehold land in Hong Kong BIRTBHEANTEE
held under medium-term lease BEZHEELTM 4,582 4,695
Leasehold land in the PRC held REPAENESER
under medium-term lease BAEZEELN 96,141 85,550
100,723 90,245
Analysed for reporting HEZBM W
purposes as: T
Non-current asset SERENEE 98,287 88,532
Current asset RBEE 2,456 1,713
100,723 90,245

Truly International Holdings Limited ZFIBIBER 2




17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. BILEE

Development

expenditure Trademarks Total
BEXH L= BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET FET
cosT RAE
At 1 January 2004 R_EENE—A—H 50,434 2,646 53,080
Additions b=l - 253 253
Write-off i (11,512) - (11,512)
At 31 December 2004 RZEENF
+ZA=+—8 38,922 2,899 41,821
Additions #hn - 405 405
Al 3L December 2005 R-GEREE
+=A=+-8 38,922 3,304 42,223
AMORTISATION ey
At 1 January 2004 RZETME—-—F-A8 11,835 2,083 13,928
Provided for the year KEFZBE 9,455 373 9,828
Eliminated on write-off BT (10,731) - (10,731)
At 31 December 2004 RETNE
+-BA=+—H 10,559 2,466 13,025
Provided for the year TEERE 9,455 344 9,799
At 34. December 2005 WoSZBEHF
+=HA=+-R 20,044 2,340 22,324
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2005 R-BTBEHF
+=-F=+-H 18,908 £94 19,402
At 31 December 2004 RZZETME
+ZB=+—8 28,363 433 28,796

Development expenditure and trademarks are amortised

on a straight-line basis over 4 years. fgeE.

Included in carrying value of development expenditure is
an amount of HK$15,600,000 (2004: HK$23,400,000)
representing licence fee acquired from a third party in
2003 for the Group’'s OLED business. The remaining
amount is internally generated. Trademarks were

acquired from third parties.

BERIERBEDAERERE BHEAR

REREIL2EBESYRE £
15,600,000/ 7T (=T Z W4 23,400,000
BT R RRREZ AN _ET=FHR
BREBEOLEDER Y RRE HHEANIE
E-EETRE=ZFNE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2005
EoFBAFF A=+ —HUFE

18. GOODWILL i18. BE
HK$'000
FHET

CosT BAE
At 1 January 2004 and RoETEE—A—EBRK

31 December 2004 ZEERE+-_A=+—8 590
Elimination of accumulated amortisation AT HEIEHEEL

upon the application EIRATERE

of HKFRS 3 (note 2) RiEE s (MH3x2) (177)
At 31 December 2003 RIBEEE+=-A=+—8 413
AMORTISATION e
At 1 January 2004 R-BETENE—/F—H 59
Charge for the year TEEEHE 118
At 31 December 2004 RIBENE+-AZ+—AH 177
Elimination of accumulated amortisation RAFTHHFIEHEER)

upon the application FEITATERS

of HKFRS 3 (note 2) BREN (WH2) (177)
At 34 December 2005 R-s2EFE+=-R=t—-8 -
CARRYING VALUE RE{E
At 31 December 2005 R-ESRF+=-A=+—8 443
At 31 December 2004 R-ZTEEF+_A=+—8 413
Until 31 December 2004, goodwill had been amortised HE-ZRZEOE+_A=1T-EBEEFA
over its estimated useful life of 5 years. ZEBEBUEES T EFEAFE-

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19, —REE AT 2ER
2005 2004
—EZRHF —ETNFE
HIKS' 000 HK$'000
FET FHBT

Cost of investment in unlisted FEIELTEHE LT

associate A 500 500
Share of post-acquisition reserves JE(GUEER G 586 785

1,086 1,285

6 6 Truly International Holdings Limited S REBER 2T




19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Particulars of the associate of the Group at 31 December

2005 are as follows:

Form of
business
structure
E$ 2
R

Name of associate

BENTER

Fast Clean (Korea) Ltd. incorporated

AR

Summarised financial information in respect of the

Group's associate is set out below:

Country of
incorporation/
operation
MR
EEER

South Korea

B

19. —REE QT 2EE @
AEER-BEREE A= +— 82

ERRZEBIT:

Percentage of
issued share

capital held

Class of by the Group

shares held FREWER

FRRG 2Z2BTRX

L] BS

Ordinary 50%
TER

Principal activities

TERE

Trading in electric
consumer products

EBHHRERES

AEEBE LT EHIBEMERNT:

2003 P 2004

—E85F —ETME

HK$ 000 HK$’000

FET ! FHET

Total assets BEE 3,829 W 3,799

Total liabilities BEE {1,858) (1,229)

Net assets FEE 2,471 2,570
\
Group's share of net assets REERE—REE i

of an associate DEFEE 1,086 } 1,285

Year ended Year ended

31.42.2005 31.12.2004

—2ZRF —EENE

+=8 | +=A

=+-8 | =+—8

rEE ( EEE

HK$ 000 HK$'000

THET FiET

Revenue g 3,935 5,901

(Loss) profit for the year AEF (BB BF {765) 225
Group’s share of results FEEEE-R |

of an associate L PNGES (382) | 113
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements i & R B HRME

For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE_FRAFF-_A=Z+—HILEFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. THEHERE

2005 W 2004
—SEARF TETRE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Unlisted equity shares, at cost IEEWRRA RS (ERAE) 7,800 -
Less: impairment R RE (7,800) | -
The investments represent investment in unlisted equity FRERR—FERERNRARETEITH
shares issued by private entities in the United States of SELETRANRE-AREBTEAERTE
America. They are stated at cost less impairment ZIBERE EERAEQATFTETEE

because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is B WARRAENRBE -

so significant that the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured

reliably.
241 INVESTMENT SECURITIES 21 EERE
The investment in unlisted equity shares at 31 December RIBENE+ - A=+ — BEREKRET]
2004 which were stated at cost were reclassified as LZELTRARER -"ZEFHE—[—
available-for-sale investments at 1 January 2005, BEFSERHEERE-
22. INVENTORIES 22. &
2005 2004
“EBRF ZETRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FET
Raw materials R # 243,785 167,573
Work in progress ERE 118,834 102,183
Finished goods BRK G 187,375 175,744
549,994 L 445,500
During the year, there was a write-down of inventories of FEER RAFTIEABERE-EFE
HK$3,599,000 (2004: HK$13,791,000) to their net WiHE 3,599,000 T (_EEWME:
realisable value. 13,791,000/E7T) ¢
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

24

5

The Group has a policy of allowing an average credit
terms ranging from 30 to 90 days to its trade customers.

The following is an aged analysis of accounts receivable
at the balance sheet date:

23, EWIRER EMEWRUE
AEBVHEARTEESESTHI0E

90RMIZEE-

REEB 2 BERRREDITIT:

2005 2004

—BERE —ETEMF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET THETT

Within 60 days BORIAA 566,087 379,284
61 to 20 days 81Z90X 63,958 45,629
More than 90 days 90KRLA L 24,611 40,022
654,656 464,935

At 31 December 2005, accumulated impairment have
been made for estimated irrecoverable amount of
HK$9,675,000 (2004: HK$5,521,000).

The fair value of the Group's trade and other receivable
at 31 December 2005, which are mainly denominated
in either Hong Kong dollar, United States dollar and
Renminbi, approximates to the corresponding carrying
amount.

RoBERE+ZA=+—8 G
PRENRIRER,675,0008 T (=8

BPU4 5,521,000 7T) °

RCERRFE+T-A=+—B AKEZE
WESREBHR(ZEUNET RERA
RESHE) 2 AT EEEREERES-

SHORT-TERM LOANS RECEIVABLE 24, WRABEWER

2005 2004
—ESHF TEERE
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FERT FHET
Interest bearing loans STEER - 1,500
The interest bearing loans were unsecured, bore interest ZEFLERAERR BHFEMR10EE

at 10% per annum and were fully repaid during the year. BUYTRAEECHEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE-FFEF+-R=+—AUFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. BN EEEREMENFIE
The foliowing is an aged analysis of accounts payable at REERZEHRBERBRSTOT:
the balance sheet date:
2005 r! 2004
—EBRE | ZETRF
HK$ 000 ’ HK$'000
FET | FBR
Within 60 days B0RLAMA 685,095 342,951
61 to 90 days 61FE90K 38,014 21,656
More than 20 days 90K LA 31,596 41,838
754,705 406,445
The fair value of the Group's trade and other payables R-FERF+-A=Z+—H F&EEBZE
at 31 December 2005, which are mainly denominated FEREREHENRE (XZBUEL =&
in either Hong Kong dollar, United States dollar, Renminbi ARBRABE) 2 D FEBAREER
and Japanese Yen, approximates to the corresponding He
carrying amount.
26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 26. BEENER
Present value
Iiinimurm of minimum
lease payments lease payments
BEES BEESRE
2005 2004 2005 j 2004
“ERBIF | ZFTNE —E2I1F 1 ZEENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HX$'000 ‘r HK$'000
T TET THER ‘ TET
Amounts payable JEfTRER ; l‘
Within one year —FR - 5,496 - 5,326
In the second to fifth E-ERFRN ‘ |
year inclusive (BEER j
MEER) - 5,411 - \ 5,313
- 10007 ‘
Less: Future finance ARG ER i ﬁ
charges - ‘ (268) ‘
| |
Present value of lease BOEKRE \
obligations - | 10,839 - 10,639
Less: Amount due for FmENBER l
settlement within —EREEH !
one year shown BEBZHE ‘
under current |
liabilities - r {5,326)
Amount due for settlement —F%&BIHIEE ‘
after one year ZHE - [ 5,313

Truly !nternational Holdings Limited SRIBRER AT




26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

27

a

(Continued)

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its plant and
machinery under finance leases. The average lease term
was 2 to 4 years. interest rates were fixed at the contract
date. All the leases were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. All leases were on a fixed repayment basis and
no arrangements had been entered into for contingent
rental payments.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases were
secured by the lessors’ charge over the leased assets.

26. BERPERE »

FEEEREBETHIRREERAE
BW-THRBS _ENE YRUHEREE
BRFIRFEROH BT B AEEL
HREHERNE RUSEHIAEESR
R& ke

FEBCHEBVERIAEEEZEE
EEERELER

BANK BORROWINGS 27. RITEE
2005 2004
—EZEF —EROE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Bank loans RITEE 430,089 408,835
Trust receipt loans ERWEBEN 1,407 3,489
Bank overdrafts HBITEX - 376
434,498 412,700
Secured T 25,000 | 37,500
Unsecured EIEE 406,496 375,200
431,496 | 412,700
|
Analysed as: ST '
Denominated in HK$ AP TTETE 424,315 409,211
Denominated in US$ ASETTEHE 7,481 | 399
Denominated in Japanese Yen VAR EEHE - 3,090
431,496 412,700
The maturity profile of the bank 1T EZ FIHH
borrowings is as follows: BRI
On demand or within one year RESBRR—FA 181,937 194,671
More than one year, but not —FIRBERMERA
exceeding two years 167,889 | 144,039
More than two years, but not MEREREER ‘
exceeding five years 81,660 73,990
434,496 412,700
Less: Amount due within one year 35 REEES [‘
shown under current Z—FNEEH '
liabilities RIE {184,937) ‘ (194,671)
1
Amount due after one year —EEDHREOR 249,559 J 218,029
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 435 ff %5 38 F M &

For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE-FFAF+-_A=+—HIFE

27. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 27. RITEE @)
All the Group's borrowings are variable-rate borrowings AEEMEEEHAZIEEE REFER
which carry interest at HIBOR or LIBOR plus certain basis FREREZBREFETEAEFENETH
points. Interest is repricing every three months and the ABEFE-FEE=EAET EEEES
range of interest rates is at 1.73% to 7.61% (2004 1.73%ZE7.61% (~EFMFE 1.67%E
1.67% to 3.67%). 3.67%) °
During the year, the Group obtained new loans in the AEEFAN AEBYREEEERES
amount of HK$255,398,000. The loans bear interest at 255,398,000/ 8 - % EEBEMS Rt
market rates and will be repayable in one to four years. B ER—FEREERNTIH-AERERMN
The proceeds were used to finance the acquisition of EREDE BERRERE.
property, plant and equipment.
At the balance sheet date, the Group has unutilised REES AEERBBEETEFE
banking facilities amounting to HK$828,326,000 (2004: £/A828,326, 000 (ZFEWNE:
HK$1,397,736,000). 1,397,736,000&7T) °
The fair value of the Group’s borrowings approximates TEBZEEZ ATFEREEEELE-

to the corresponding carrying amount.

28. DEFERRED TAX 28. IRERIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) EAE F-ERESEAERNEIERE
recognised and movements thereon during the current WIEER CEE) REZENT:

and prior reporting periods:

Accelerated

tax Intangible Tax
depreciation assets losses Others Total
MEBENE EBREE REFE 2 2%

HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TR TER FER TET

At 1 January 2004 R-FENE—HA—-HB 16,312 806 (52) (226) 16,840
Charge (credit) to income REFERARZE

for the year (&) 3,256 (301) 44 (469) 2,530
At 1 January 2005 R-TEAE—F-H 19,568 505 (8) (685) 19,370
Effect on cessation of RIELEBTEHE

concessionary rate of BENER

Hong Kong Profits Tax on HEMERE

opening deferred tax liability ~ HEERE

charge to income LB 19,040 434 - - 19,474
(Credit) charge to income REEFRAR

for the year T (ER) (458) (939) 8 280 (1,109)
At 31 December 2005 k=2 3

+=B=+-8 38,150 - - (415) 37,735

7 2 Truly International Holdings Limited EHBBER A A




28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

28. BEFHE @

HREERERZEVME SEEETERLE
BREREREB-RHBE2EME EER
BRESBoFmT

20085 ﬂ 2004

—E8Z2RE | —ETEF

HK$’'000 \‘ HK$'000

FET | FET

Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 38,150 ’ 19,370
Deferred tax assets BERBEE (418) | -
37,735 l 19,370

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$46,093,000 (2004: HK$25,855,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of nil (2004:
HK$46,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$46,093,000 (2004: HK$25,809,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$10,536,000
(2004: HK$3,785,000) that will expire from 2007 to
2010, other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had other deductible
temporary differences of HK$7,835,000 (2004: nil)
available for offset against future profit. A deferred tax
asset has not been recognised due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams.

REEE XEEZABHABBES
46,093,000/% 7T (ZF TN 25,855,000
B A BEEERREN - REMBEE
YEEBEEE (ZETMEE 46,000 7T)
FLARER - RN K ST R 28 7 Bk ab
EHE 546,093,000 T (ZETNF:
25,809,000/ 70) MRBLETRBAE R
RBEEBEEER_EE+EE
ZZ2-FFERZERL0,536,0008 T
(ZFTME:3,785,000587T) ' MEME
BRI ERBEE-

REEE AEBRZEMTNHERZE
7,835,000 7 (- EF/0F &) 7] A1ER
SER A e R AR EE RS R 2B A
EHRELCHBEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE_FFAFFI-A=+—HUFHE

29. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

Number of shares

29. ZATRE

Share capital

B N
2005 | 2004 2005 2004
“EREHF | —TRRE ZBBREF | _TETEF
HIK$'000 HK$’'000
FER TET
Ordinary shares of EREEC.LET
HK$0.1 each 2ERR
Authorised: EE:
At 1 January »—A—H 650,000,000 |500,000,000 65,000 50,000
Increase on 12 May 2004 R-FEME
TA+=-B#MN - 11150,000,000 - 15,000
At 31 December »+=-H=+—H 650,000,000 |650,000,000 65,000 65,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRER:
At 1 January w—A—8H 451,689,527 (444,259,527 45,168 44,425
Exercise of share options TTEREATE 6,475,000 7,430,000 648 743
‘ t
At 31 December RN+ BA=+—8 458,164,527 }451,689,527 45,816 45,168
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual BEALNTNR-_ETENERTA+-BET
general meeting of the Company held on 12 May 2004, ZBREBFRELLRBIERRER ER
the authorised share capital of the Company was #101150,000,000 R GREEC.LETLZHE
increased from HK$50,000,000 to HK$65,000,000 by SRR - AR AR Z A ERAE 550,000,000
the creation of additional 150,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 BT E65,000,0008 7T
each.
Details of the exercise of share options are set out in T REAR R - S BRI SE 883418
note 34.
30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30. RAREBE
2005 2004
ZEZTF —ETNF
KK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FEIT
Export bills discounted with MEBREZLHO
recourse BLIE iR - 27,043
34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 31 EEEH

REFED NEEEEREL{EHR47,056,000
B2 ETHE (ZFTEM4E 55,360,000
BT REFETEARGAKEEZEIT
BEZEA-

At the balance sheet date, the Group had pledged certain
of its machinery with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$47,056,000 (2004: HK$55,360,000) to secure
bank borrowings granted to the Group.

Truly International Holdings Limited ERIEB AR LT




32. ORPERATING LEASE COVMIMITMENTS

(Y]
€

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

2, RREBRAEIE

REEE AREETIHFEREEHOTZ
RRFEBONFARZBERMT:

2005 | 2004
—EBFEF | ZZTE@ESF
HKX$'000 HK$'000
FER THET
i
|
Within one year —FA 4,435 | 1,971
In the second to fifth year BoE=RER |
inclusive (BEERMELA) 274 2,253
4,709 4,224

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office premises and other
equipment. Leases are negotiated for an average term
of two years with fixed rentals.

BEMANEREREREETHOEDER
HEtnREMEN 2 Be- FHRERH AR
FAREEHESE-

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. WaEGE
2005 { 2004
—ESRE | —ZETEE
HK3$'000 | HK$'000
FRET ‘ FET
|
Capital expenditure contracted REEBEEER }
for but not provided in #EDETH j
the financial statements in REFERE (
respect of acquisition of REEZER
plant and equipment T 51,415 | 170,423
1
Capital expenditure authorised HEEBER !
but not contracted for in SEOERE !
respect of acquisition of BRETHZ /
plant and equipment BTN 2,000,000 | 550,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE-_SFAFE+-FA=+—BiFE

34, SHARE OPTION SCREWIES
Pursuant to resolutions passed at an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company on 22 December 2003,
the Company has terminated a share option scheme
which was adopted on 22 May 2001 (the “Old Scheme”)
and adopted a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”).

(i)

0Old Scheme

The purpose of the Oid Scheme is to motivate
employees of the Group and to allow them to
participate in the growth of the Company. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Old Scheme is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the share capital
of the Company in issue from time to time. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual is not
permitted to exceed 25% of the aggregate number
of shares for the time being issued and issuable
under the Old Scheme. Any participants who
accepts an offer of the grant of an option in
accordance with the terms of the Old Scheme shall
pay to the Company HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof within a period
of 30 days from the date on which an option is
offered 10 the participant.

At 31 December 2005, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted
previously and remained outstanding under the Old
Scheme was 14,095,000 (2004: 20,570,000),
representing 3.1% (2004: 4.6%) of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date. The options are
exercisable at any time until 22 May 2011.

Truly International Holdings Limited (5 /BB ER A7)

34, BRETH
BEXLIR-BEE=E+_A=-+28
BEZBREESBEASBBAZREER K
DEREHIERZEE-FRAC-T-AK
W BENEETE (TE5T8) - THEA—]/FH
BERRREET &) (THFETEI) -

(i)

5
EHNESEEDAERACER UR
HELRANRA TR IREESE
APRELZEREMSIRZBNHE
B EETERARDETHDRT
BEAR10% o PR PEMERIA L ZER
ERFPRZEHEE &5 TEHEE
ERBREETBERTRABIIZR
1DEBE25% - FEBEETRIERERN
FRERERE SEE BN ERER
FHEEEDEH30BANRERR
AR BZA1.00E T

R-_EREFE+ZA=+—RB Bt
BIET 2EREEMEITEBRES
HRZREE B14,095,0008% (=
ZRINF:20,570,00088) {EERE]
RZA 2B BITRA3.1%(ZFTN
F:4.6%) BT MR TUTE &
Z2_R——FRA-+=-H|k-




34, SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 34, ERETE @
Old Scheme (Continued)

(1)

The following tables disclose details of the
Company's share options held by the employees

() BFI®@®
TREBEE (RIFES) FIREAR
BEE o FERRERZBRERD

{including directors) and movements in such P
holdings during the year:

Number of options
BRENE
Outstanding
OQutstanding at
Outstanding  Exercised  at 31.12.2004 Exercised  31.12.2005
Exercise at 1.1.2004 duing  R-Z2RE duing  H-BRIE
Date of grant  Exercisable period price R-BENE theyear TZRZt-H theyear T-A=1-H
RERE i fiER -A-RHAGE  EROE HATE Enfi HEE
HKS
BT
Directors:
s
16 July2001 1772001 to 24.5.2011 2.196 21,100,000 (6,730,000) 14,370,000 (2,980,000) 11,390,000
3% Z3E-FrATLAE
;o “B-£5821-5
Employees:
EE:
16 July 2001 17.7.2001 to 21.5.2014 2196 6,900,000  (700,000) 6,200,000 (3,495,000) 2,705,000
“FE-% ZFE-ErAEE
tE+RE “E--ERf-t-B
28,000,000 (7,430,000} 20,570,000 (6,475,000) 14,095,000

The average fair value of the Company’s share
before the date of issue for the exercise of share

ERRITEERENRIT2ARE
BRETEBZTHELFEEA

options during the year is HK$10.38. 10.38% e
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34, SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34, BRESE
(ii) New Scheme (ii) FEt#

/8

The Company’s New Scheme was adopted for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to eligible
persons or rewarding for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group and will expire
on 21 December 2013. Under the New Scheme,
the Board of Directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible persons, including (i) any director
or proposed director, full-time employee or proposed
employee of any member of the Group or controlling
shareholder or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder; {ii) any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or
any controlling shareholder or any company
controlied by a controlling shareholder; and (iii) any
business or joint venture partner, contractor, agent
or representative of any supplier of goods or
services to or any customer or distributor of goods
or services of any member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder or a company controlled by
a controlling shareholder.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Scheme
and the Old Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. The number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’'s shareholders., Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the
Company's share capital and with.a value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by
the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be accepted within 21 days
from the date of option offer, upon payment of
HK$1.00 per option. Options may be exercised at
any time from the date of grant of the share option
to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of grant, and the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

Truly International Holdings Limited SRIBBERATH

ARBRZFHBEIRAEDEERE
SRR EHARHZ EHREE
ERMES AR IB—=F+2
RZ+—BER-REFFBTLF
B RHBRETAABRALT
BEONAEDEARKBERATEFNES
NERER 2RERNERER E
R R EEREEH 2 EAAR:
(VEEREARERFBITZETE
F2ERBE A EMEERREIR
Rt A= OUNCIER (e O
BReenBs A28 EF T
HRERBHEBRR TRHEF A
FEEEARELTAZERRBEBIE
B I ERRR R E R 2
ERaE-.

RABELTBRESLIEZIBA
T REBFHERENETREREY
BRESRZENDES THEEBAR
RENE(RHE 2 BB TRD10% « AR
EERRFRRBEAZBERAT R
T — FEAREEER A LT B
TEREBSREZEMHEE TERB
AQBE B BITRNZ1% °
BETEREABIERITES
BEBBEARRA01% X EBEBA
5,000,000/ T2 BRENES G
ARRREHE.

BHERENENEREREER
EEEF21 B AT B0 EREL. 00
T2HEREH-BERETRARLER
BEOHRHERE - AEHMA
BBRITE-TEEEARRESET
BEBRLRARAEROREL BBy
UmERRONEEREL RS AE
BEAZFHUTE(UESEA
#) e




34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 34, BRETH @

(ii) New Scheme (Continued) (i) #st# (&

At 31 December 2005, the number of shares in RITERFE+-E=+—0 B
respect of which options had been granted FEHBERERERITERERER S
previously and remained outstanding under the New k2o 8 8 544,000,0008 (&
Scheme was 44,000,000 (2004: 44,000,000), EHF:44,000,00088) ERZER
representing 9.6% (2004: 9.7%) of the shares of RAIREITIRD 29.6% (ZFEMF:
the Company in issue at that date. The options are 9.7%) BN _T—=F+8
exercisable at any time until 21 December 2013. Z+—BRzEARERTE.

The following table discloses details of the TEREREER (BREES) FIREARHE
Company's share options held by the employees BRE S

(including directors):

Number of
options
outstanding
at 26.2.2004,
31.12.2004
and 31.12.2005
R-BEMOF
—B=+x8
—BEmMF
+ZH=+—-8R
—EBRE
Exercise +=-B=+—8
Date of grant Exercisable period price MARITE
BHAM TEHRH THEE BREHE
HK$
BT
Directors:
E=:
26 February 2004 27.2.2004 t0 21.12.2013 11.6 17,600,000
ZEEMEZAZARH ZEERF-_R-F+LEHE
ZE-—=F+=fF=+—H
Employees:
=K
26 February 2004 27.,2.2004 t0 21.12.2013 11.6 26,400,000
CEENEZAZT7NE ZEEMF_AZ++ERE
ZB—=F+-/A=+—H
44,000,000
Annual Report 2005 F 5§ ﬁ 7 9
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BE-FFRFTA=+—AUFE

34.

38.

@9
o

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii) New Scheme (Continued)
By the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2, the
financial impact of the share options granted above
is not recorded in the Group’s balance sheet until
such time as the options are exercised. Upon the
exercise of the share options, the resuiting shares
issued are recorded by the Company as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares,
and the excess of the exercise price per share over
the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the
Company in the share premium account. Options
which |lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise
date are deleted from the register of outstanding
options.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
All the staff in Hong Kong of the Group are required to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. The Group
is required to contribute 5%, while the employees are
required to contribute 5% of their salaries to the scheme
to the extent of HK$1,000 for each employee.

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of the salaries of their employees to
the state-managed retirement benefit scheme. The only
obligation of the Group with respect 1o the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

COVERNMENT GRANTS

During the year, the Group received an unconditional
government subsidy of HK$1,887,000 (2004:
HK$14,953,000) towards the scientific research
development. The amount has been treated as deferred
income. The amount is transferred to income over the
useful lives of the relevant assets and relevant
expenditure incurred. This policy has resulted in a credit
1o income in the current year of HK$1,856,000 (2004
HK$1,162,000). As at 31 December 2005, an amount
of HK$14,087,000 (2004: HK$13,791,000) remained
1o be amortised and included in other payables.

Truly International Holdings Limited ERIBBHR L &

34,

35.

36.

BRETE @

(iiy ¥stW (2
BRENEBUBEREERE2RY
BEMHGR FRZEREZHRY
BUREHNFAEBZEERER
ETEREEOEIHL-TRER
RS R RRETHIT 2 BN AR
WELHABIMBE TERGTESR
SR OEE T £ B B AR R AL
PR EERR AT B BRAT R G
FEEBRETaERTEEREZ
ZEZ MMk

BERIH A
REB2BEAEEHELMESMD
e AR EBEEHS% R MEE IR
BREHEELEFHow £ SRER
ZERES R1,0008 T

BREFREEAZEAL TENBLTA
AEREERAEMBELEERAER
EFHETES L HR-REEMBKE
FiEtElIFa s RERLMEs BIfELATA

HRe

BT

AEARFRAESERGTBRFREDH
1,887,000 ¢ (B EF 14,953,000
BIT)  FRERIF B R -REHED BT RA
R -ZEEANEREERTEEZHBE
B EABRNE SRS R ERNRAE
Bl AEERTES1,856,0008T (Z B8N
#£:1,162,0008 %) R ZERRFTA
=+—H R 2 81514,087,000 T
(ZFET M4 :13,791,000#7T) Bt AR
BT EE.




37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:

37. BRFEZRS
FEFREERTEEEEBRE ZFHOT:

2005 ‘ 2004

—EgRF | —ZTNE

HK$'000 HK$ 000

TR TET

Short-term benefits BERER| 14,575 14,284

Post-employment benefits BERE R E T 132 | 132
\

11,707 | 14,416

FEEBERIETRABZEMEH
HWEBE2ZEINALZRRETSEE
BEE-.

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

38.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
At 31 December 2005:

38. ARAEEMEARER
RZFREF+ZA=+—8:

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

Place of
incorporation
or registration/

Proportionate
equity interest

operation BRTRHERE of the Group
Name of subsidiary BREIHRFR, EEBERRA EERELH Principal activities
MEARER ExuE BE/2REX FRERE TEER
Directly Indirectly
E# &
Fast Clean Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% Trading in electric
BERERLF % 100 toothbrush
EHTRES
Fast Clean (U.S.A.) Inc. United States Us$5,000 - 100% Trading of health
of America 5,000% 71 products
e BEERESR
Truly Electronics Hong Kong HK$1,000,010 100% - Trading in electronic
Manufacturing Limited gE 1,000,010 T calculators
EMEFERAT ETHEHRES
Lite Tech Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100% Trading in back light
KEMERAT] EE 100,000 7T ERRES

R |
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BE_FRRAF+_-A=+—BuUFE

IB.PARTICULARS ©OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

Place of
incorporation
or registration/

Proportionate
equity interest

3. AR EEMELARER

operation BRTREE of the Group
Name of subsidiary R WA EERRE REWZLH Principal activities
HEANER BN EE /ERES FEERE TEEY
Directly Indirectly
HE &
Truly Electrical Products Hong Kong HK$200 - 100% Trading in motor
Company Limited B 200% 7T BiTE5
ERERERAT
Truly Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$872,894 - 100% Trading in electronic
ERIXABRAR & 872,894 7T components
. EFiHES
Truly Semiconductors Germany DM50,000 - 100% Trading in LCD
{Europe) GmbH B8 50,0005 5% products
BoBRERBER
25
Truly Semiconductors Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100% Trading in LCD
Limited 5E 1,000%7T products
ERNF+EEERAT REBETRESR
g5
Truly (USA} Inc, United States US$20,000 100% - Marketing of
of America 20,0007 electronic
=8 calculators
EEBETIER
EMNETFERAF PRC US$35,361,100 - 100% Manufacture of
T E 35,361,100E 7 electronic
calculators
BEBFIHER
ERLEBEROF PRC U$$139,620,900 - 100%  Manufacture of
H 139,620,900% T LCD products

Truly International Holdings Limited ERIBEER LT
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38.PARTICULARS OF

SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

Place of
incorporation
or registration/

Proportionate
equity interest

PRINGIPAL 38 AATBFEMELTESR &
OF THE COMPARNY

operation BRIRER of the Group
Name of subsidiary SRR YRER LERRE FEMEL B Principal activities
HBARER ik EE/SmEx FrsaRE IBER
Directly Indirectly
B g
FEZOLE)BEBRAT*  PRC US$1,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture of
FE 1,000,000% 7T electric toothbrush
LETHFA
EMEHR (CLE) ARLF*  PRC US$1,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture of
HE 1,000,000 7T motor
BB
KB GLE) BIRARA*  PRC U8$2,200,000 - 100%  Manufacture of
RE 2,200,000% 7 back light
BHER IR
* wholly foreign owned enterprise * SEBETE

P2 REFINAEEZMBLR RES
CER ZEWBATAIENETRER
BREEY DEHRARBHEATZF
B EEZRRTHURBRHER-

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of directors, principally affected the resuits
or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

R-ZBERF+ZA=Z+—HAFAEH
B 2B LR EIAREEREES-

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at 31 December 2005 or at any time during
the year.
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rlitancial summary

RESULTS B4z
Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+-BLEE

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
ZRE-% ZETZF  —FF-F TTRE 8RR
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 RKX$°000
FET TERT TET FEL TR
Turnover 1] 682,086 857,086 1,399,898 3,406,992 4,574,079
Cost of sales HERA (494,606)  (613,421)  (993,521) (2,615,969) (3,487,718)
Gross profit e 187,480 243,665 408,377 791,023 1,086,350
Other income HE A 13,925 10,721 7,861 16,061 27,438
Distribution costs DHEEAK (27,694) (31,171) (39,189) (54,839) (73,592)
Administrative expenses THER (92,815) (101,918) {131,717) (130,229) (164,459)
Impairment losses REEE - - - - (18,177)
Finance costs EBI5E A (16,305) (10,299) (9,665) (14,201) (19,683)
Share of results of an Eh—REEDF
associate E3 - 120 552 113 (382)
Profit before taxation BEET 64,591 111,118 234,219 607,928 841,505
income tax expense A (4,841) (7,282) (41,570) (81,427)  (139,457)
Profit for the year REERH 59,750 103,836 192,649 526,501 702,048
Attributable to: AT RELL:
Equity holders of the RLRRBA
Company BEA 60,076 103,836 192,649 526,501 702,048
Minority interests DR FER {326) - - - -
59,750 103,836 192,649 526,501 702,048

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 December
W+=A=+-8
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
—$E-5 C-ZT-F <-FZT-F C-TENF -—BLEfE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL FEL TR FEL TER

Total assets BESLS 1,149,773 1,253,455 1,731,079 2,408,947 3,428,180
Total liabilities EREE (326,562) (389,718) (735,847) (1,001,008) (1,490,135)

823,211 863,737 995,232 1,407,939 1,938,045

Equity attributable to equity AR RBERER
holders of the Company fgiE 823,801 864,327 985,232 1,407,939 1,938,045
Minority interests DERER (590) (590) - - -

823,211 863,737 995,232 1,407,939 1,938,045

Prior Periods’ figures have been adjusted to reflect the change  NASBHECRBREE URBERUEBENFF2ED
in accounting policies as described in note 2 to the financial it e &3t BRRE-
statements,

84 Truly International Holdings Limited ZHEBERAT
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